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Recent investments in new
equipment include a fully
automated test stand that
checks the accuracy of the
company's large turbo and
compound meters prior

to shipment. The new test
stand triples the company’s
previous large-meter testing
capacity and also provides
faster changeovers, added
flexibility and increased ease

of operation.
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financial highlights

December 31, 2006 2005 % Change
Operalions
{dollars in thousands)
Net sales $229,754  $203,637 128
Earnings from continuing operations  $ 16,568 5 16,164 25
Loss from discontinued operations $ (90200 S (2811) 2099
Net earnings $ 7,548 513253 (430)
Diluted Earnings Per Common Share
from continuing operations $ 115 $ 115 —
from discontinued operations $ 063y § (0200 2150
Total diluted $ 052 $ 085 (453
Cash dividends 5 03 $ 029 6.9
Net book value $ 507 5 536 (5.4)
Year-End Financial Position
(doitars in thousands)
Total assets $139,383 3145867 4.4
Total debt ffong-term and short-term)  § 22,965 % 28688  (200)
Shareholders' equity 5 71,819 $ 73416 (2.2
Debt as a percent of total debt
and equity including debt
from discontinued operations 26.8% 301%  (11.0)
Earnings from continuing operations
as a percent of equity 23.1% 220% 5.0
Other
Number of employees 1,113 1,008 104
Number of sharehalders:
in employee plans 581 572 16
of record 632 590 7.1
Shares outstanding at Decamber 31 14,154,108 13,696,298 33
Net Earnings Dividends Per Share
{in miffions)
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Richard A. Meeusen, chairman, president and chief executive officer (center),
with executive committee members Richard E. Johnson, senior vice
president-finance, chief financial officer and treasurer fleft) and
Ranald H. Dix, senior vice president-administration.

Dear Shareholders,

My nephews are experts at building connections. They recently
received a toy construction set, consisting of plastic poles and
tubes. According to the illustration on the box, it could be used
to buitd anything from the Sears Tower o a nuclear accelerator,

In reality, it contains just encugh parts to construct a one-armed
stick man. Being typical boys, they have augmented the contents
with an assortment of string, paper clips and hair curlers, enabling
thern to build complex structures that tink together common
household items, such as lamps, shoes and the family dog.

lam not only amazed by these creative constructs, but | also find
that they remind me of the complex connections that Badger
Meter has bullt over the past several years. However, instead
of using toys, string and clips, we have used our brand name,
innovative technologies and strategic initiatives to connect
together a series of alliances, customer relationships and new
products, all designed to build shareholder value.

During 2006, we were able to strengthen many of our existing
connections, build several new connections, and even eliminate
some unsuccessful connections. It was a year of both successes
and challenges, but one that enables us to enter 2007 with financial
strength and strategic focus.

THE FINANCIAL CONNECTION

In 2006, we achieved record sales of $229.8 million, a 12.8%
increase over 2005, due in large part to the continuing success
of cur automatic meter reading (AMR} technologies. Earnings
from continuing operations before income taxes were $275
million, a 7.1% increase aver 2005, Net earnings for 2006 were
down 42.0% from 2005, dus to <harges related 1o the shutdown
of our unprofitahle French subsidiary. In spite of these charges,
we continued to maintain a strong balance sheet, with a debt-
lo-capitalization ratio of 26.8% at year-end 2006. We generated
strong cash flow from operations in 2006 of $16.8 million, and
inCreased our dividend for the 14th consecutive year, cnce again
putting Badger Meter an Mergent Inc.'s “Dividend Achiever
Index.” Far the fourth time, we were named by Forbes magazine
as one of the "200 Best Small Companies in the U5




THE ORION® CONNECTION

As we have focused on building strong connections, the “star”
cf our connectivity strategy has been the CRION® AMR system.
The key to this strategy is the ability of ORION t0 operate equally
well as a drive-by system or in communicating with various public
and private network technologies te provide meter reading
infermation to the utility customer. Badger has established
strategic alliances with numerous network providers, which will
enable us to continue to grow ORICN sales, along with sales

of our own fixed-base AMR product, GALAXY®,

Badger continues tc held a unique pasition in the industry, with
over 100 years of experience in flow measurement, the best AMR
technologies in the market and alliances with many of the major

companigs that provide network solutions to municipalities.

THE FRENCH DISCONNECTION

in 2002, Badger Meter acquired MecaPlus Fquipements of Nancy,
France, which was our largest reseller of automotive fluid meters.
Although MecaPlus was not profitable, we believed at the time
that we could improve its operations and expand its sales outside
of France. We were successful in increasing export sales, but the
weaker French economy and competitive pressures prevenied
us from achieving profitability. As a result, in 2006 we made the
decision to discontinue the MecaPlus operation,

After the shutdown is completed, our earnings will no longer
be negatively impacted by the French losses, and we have the
opporiunity (@ continue to sell autornetive fluid meters in Europe
through alliances with other companies. While this decision
impacted our short-term results, we believe it was the right
strategic decision for the future of Badger Meter.

THE COPPER CONNECTION

In 2006, the cost of copper was directly connected to our financial
performance. For many decades, the cost of copper was between
50.50 and $1.00 per pound. As Ching's economy began to grow, its

demand for copper also increased. n response, copper costs began

rising, reaching $2.00 at the start of 2006, peaking at almaost $4.00
in May of 2008, and then settiing at $3.50 for the remainder of the
year. Most of Badger's meters are made with a copper alloy, the
cost of which is directly impacted by copper costs. As a result,
we saw a marked increase in our material costs during 2006.

In August of 2006, we implemented a price increase in response to
the higher copper costs, as well as the increased cost of oil, plastic
resin and other commodities. Although some of the increases were
immediately effective, customers with long-term contracts will not
see the impact until later in 2007 or even 2008. Most of our major
competitars followed us with thelr own price increases and we

have seen good marker acceptance of the new prices.

In addition to the positive impact of these price increases on our
margins, copper costs began ta drop in the fourth quarter of 20086,
reaching $2.5C per pound by early January 2007. These reductions
will take time to impact our cost of sales, but are expected to
benefit our 2007 rmargins.

THE FUTURE CONNECTION

With the strength of the ORION product, lower copper costs and
the elimination of the losses from the French aperation, we look
forward to a strong 2007 and beyond. Badger's strategic initiatives
and “strong connections” have positioned us to take advantage
of the significant oppartunities in the flow measurement market,
This report highlights many of thase strong connections, hopefully
enabling you to better understand cur business model and key
growth strategies.

On behalf of the directors, officers and employees of Badger Meter,
I want to thank our shareholders, customers and alliance partners
for your continued support and confidence in the company.

e
Richard A. Meeusen

Chairman, President and Chiel Executive Officer
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Badger Meter's investments in
technology include the largest
and most advanced flow lab
in the country, used exclusively
for research and new product
development.

[
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building strong connections-
technology

Technology has always been one of Badger Meter’s greatest
strengths. Qur technology leadership dates back to our founding
in 1905, when two Milwaukee entrepreneurs developed the
"frost proof” water meter design that is still used in the meters
we manufacture today.

While meters remain our core competency, the real growth
potential for Badger Meter lies in automatic meter reading
(AMRY. In just four years, our ORION® AMR systern has captured
significant market share and generated strong sales and margin
growth. Suitable for both the smallest towns and the largest
cities, what really sets ORION apart is its flexibility. ORION obtains
meter readings using whatever technolagy the utility prefers,
from driving down the street to transmitting meter data using
power lines, public wireless networks and the latest municipal
Wi-Fi systems.

Cn the industrial side of the business, our electromagnetic
flowmeters and impeller meters also offer the latest technology
in the market. Electromagnetic flowmeters help customers
te efficiently and accurately measure the ingredients used in
manufacturing products ranging from food and beverages to
pharmaceuticals and chemicals, providing additional growth
opportunities for Badger Meter. Impeller meters are used in
fire-fighting apparatus, irrigation, and environmenta! heating,
ventilating and air conditioning applications.

Our technology leadership is centered on an experienced and
innovative product development team that anticipates customer
needs and develops the technology to meet them. An example
of our commitrment o technology is our investment in building the
largest and most advanced indoor flow lab in the country, used
solely for research and new product development — another
strong connection to our Customers.




building strong connections-
alliances

How can a company the size of Badger Meter successfully compete
against much bigger companies with substantially larger research
and development budgets? One answer is alliances.

Most of Badger Meter's competitors provide automatic meter
reading systemns for all three types of utilities: water, gas and
electric. In contrast, we have never competed in the electric AMR
market. This opens the door te exciting opportunities and new

distribution channels through alliances with companies that want
1o use their electric AMR systems to also obtain readings from
water and gas meters.

Qur ability to interface with virtually all of the leading network

options in the utility market today, witheut the extensive capital

investment that would be required to develop each of these

technelogies on our own, is a significant competitive advantage

for Badger Meter. If @ customer wants t¢ use technology from

Distribution Control Systems, Inc. or Hunt Technologies, Inc. to

obtain meter readings over electric power lines, our meters are

compatible. In the fast-growing public wireless/municipal Wi-Fi Strong alliances have an

area, we are an approved product provider for leading companies important role in Badger
Meter’s growth, Our highly
successful ORION® AMR system
is the result of an alliance with

including Motorola, Cisco Systems, Sprint Nextel, SkyPilot™
Networks and Tropos Networks. Gther alliance agreements

. i f
include Current Communications Group, LLC for broadband over Hydrometer GmbH of Germany.

powerline and Tantalus Systems Corp. for wireless fixed-base Pictured are Daniei D. Zandron,

radic-frequency AMR. The key to these relationships is the ORION® vice president of business
radio system, which transmits the data from the meter to all types development for Badger Meter
of communication systems, and can be easily adapted to new fleft), and Claus Ginther,
technologies as they evolve. president, affiliated companies

of Diehl Stiftung & Co. KG., the

. . . ‘ arent company of Hydrometer,
Strong alliance relationships also have a role in new product P pany GLay

development. Qur highly successful ORION AMR system was
developed in conjunction with Hydrometer GmbH of Germany.
Qur relationship with Sensus Metering Systems GmbH, also in Germany,
has produced several generations of large meters for commercial
applications — a successful long-term cannection for both companies.
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Badger Meter’s relationship
with the city of Milwaukee
dates back ta our founding in
1905. Milwaukee was our first
customer, and continues to be

a customer taday, illustrating
the benefits of cur long-standing
commitment to technology,
products and service.

building strong connections-
customers

With more than a century of flow measurement expertise
behind us, Badger Meter’s reputation is well known and highly
respected in the marketplace. Qur very first customer, the city
of Milwaukee, continues 1o be a customer today, along with
many cther long-term customers, Over two-thirds of the meters
we sell each year are replacerment meters, an indication of our
stable, and satisfied, customer base.

On top of that, the opportunities generated by new metering
systems continue to grow. Water utilities in cities that were
unmetered in the past are installing water meters to encourage
conservation. Other utilities are moving to autematic meter
reading to increase revenues and lower operating costs. As they
investigate new technologies, customers are increasingly relying
on Badger Meter to provide a complete metering sclution that
meets their needs, We are well positioned with the ORION" AMR
systermn and its ability 1o interface with a broad range of meter
reading technologies and providers.

ORION is increasing market share not only because of its many
benefits, but also because it is 3 Badger Meter progduct. Our
roots have always been, and continue to be, in producing water
meters that have the highest level of accuracy in the market,
Regardless of the meter-reading systemn a utility selects, it still
needs the water meter. And while various types of automatic
meter reading technologies and companies have come and
gone over the past 20 years, the quality of our products and
commitment to our customers have not changed. In fact, our
proven success in automatic meter reading has strengthened
existing customer relationships and fostered many new ones.

Whether it's individual water meters, or a complete metering
system that interfaces with the latest public wireless or
municipal Wi-Fi technology, our strong customer relationships
are buil on a successful combination of technology, products
and service.

Broxdiger Meters dhere ¢ fhe
ULS, wiolEer-reier misiies,




building strong connections-
shareholders

Just as Badger Meter has a reputation for leadership in the
marketplace, we are alsc a leader in building sharehclder value.
Our philosophy is to manage for the long term. That means we
make investments that we believe will facilitate our future growth
and increase shareholder value, even if they do not generate
immediate results,

This philosophy has resulted in the solid performance that builds
strong connections with shareholders. For example, in 20086:
o Badger Meter was named one of the 200 "Best Small
Companies” by Forbes magazine — for the fourth time.
= The quarterly dividend increased for the 14th consecutive
year, once again putting us on Mergent Inc.'s "Dividend
Achiever Index "
< Return on sharehalders’ equity from continuing operations
was 23.1%.
< We generated $16.8 millicn in cash flow.
o $5.5 million was invested in research and development.

Capital expenditures increased 21.7% 1o $11.1 millien in 20085,
as we invested in both new manufacturing equipment and
facilities. We added new robetic manufacturing equipment at
our Milwaukee plant and added a facility in Nogales, Mexico, to
improve productivity and reduce costs. The second phase of the
Nagales expansion will begin in 2007, Also in 2007, we will move
into a new facility in Stuttgart, Germany. These investments will

enable us to remain a streng competitor in a global marketplace.

As a result of our long-term strategies, the price of Badger Meter
cemmeon stock has increased mare than 500% over the past
five years, This solid return on investment provides a strong

connection for our shareholders.

7.

v s

consectiivelearstoffdividendlineieasesy

Cur focus on managing for the

fong term includes continually
investing in new technology and
equipment to improve quality
and efficiency. This robotic
testing system checks meter
housings for feaks using blasts
of air. The camera “sees” the size
of the meter being tested and
the equiprent automatically
calibrates the amount of air
needed for the test.
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product profiles

Utility Market Industrial Market
RESIDENTIAL WATER METERS AUTOMOTIVE FLUID METERS
Residential water meters provide Automotive fluid meters measure anel dispense
oplimum revenue generation by E\\; E;. ;J automotive fluids such as oil. grease and
measuring end-user consurnption. QQ&_ o transmission Muids.

Badger Meter’s Recordall® residential @ +

disc meters provide the highest level e

of accuracy in the industry, M

SMALL PRECISION VALVES

Smail precision valves control the fluids in o wide fange of
COMMERCIAL WATER METERS applications including medical research, pharmaceutica!
production, food and beverage, petroleum, and heating
ventilating and air conditioning.

Commercial water meters
provide optimal revenue
generation for utifities
from their commercial

ELECTROMAGNETIC FLOWMETERS

customers. Producis include

Recordall lmige disc, turbo Magnetoffow meters measure a large variety of |
and compound meters, fluids in industries including food and beverage, 'Z
Magnetofiow® meters and pharmaceutical, chemical and mining. hind

Recordall fire service meters Flexibility in materiols and instaliation
methods make these meters suitable for

a wide range of applications.

and assembiies,

AUTOMATIC METER READING \
{AMR] TECHNOLOGIES ) = OTHER INDUSTRIAL METERS

Badger Meter's Recordall Transmitter
Register (RTR®) and Absolute Digital
Encoder (ADE®) provide digiial
connectivity to both established measure and add chemicals in the
and emerging network technologies production of concrete. Impelier flow
including power line carrier (PLC), [\ > ‘“‘c’.’ sensors measure in-pipe fiquid flow,
broadband over power fine (BPL), -
municipal Wi-Fi and radio
frequencysysiems {drive-by
and fixed-based), Badger Meter
offers a variety of AMR systems
including ORION®, GALAXY®
and firon®

Oscifiating piston meters and oval gear meters
handle maost fluids regardiess of viscosity.
Concrete metess and dispensing systems

corporaie profile
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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K

Annual Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006

BADGER METER, INC.

4545 W, Brown Deer Road
Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53223
(414) 355-0400
A Wisconsin Corporation
IRS Employer Identification No. 39-0143280
Commission File No. 1-6706

The Company has the following classes of securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Name of each exchange

Title of class: on which registered:
Common Stock American Stock Exchange
Common Share Purchase Rights American Stock Exchange

The Company does not have any securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act.

Indicate by check mark if the Company is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities
Act. Yes O No

Indicate by check mark if the Company is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Exchange
Act. Yes [1 No

Indicate by check mark whether the Company (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the Company was required to file such reports), and
{2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and witl not
be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part [l of
this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated filer. See
definition of “accelerated filer and large accelerated filer” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer [ Accelerated filer Non-accelerated filer [J
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes O No

The aggregate market value of the Common Stock held by non-aftiliates of the Company as of June 30, 2006 was $355,828,383. For
purposcs of this calculation only, (i) shares of Common Stock are deemed to have a market value of $27.00 per share, the closing price of
the Common Stock as reported on the American Stock Exchange on June 30, 2006, and {ii) each of the executive officers and directors is
deemed to be an affiliate of the Company.

As of February 13, 2007, there were 14,192,176 shares of Common Stock outstanding with a par value of $1 per share.

Portions of the Company’s Proxy Statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which will be filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission under Regulation 14A within 120 days after the end of the registrant’s fiscal year, are incorporated by
reference from the definitive Proxy Statement into Part 111




Special Note Regarding Forward Looking Statements

Certain statements contained in this Form 10-K, as well as other information provided from time to time by the
Company or its employees, may contain forward looking statements that involve risks and uncenainties that could
cause actual results to differ materially from those in the forward looking statements. The words “anticipate,”
“believe.” “estimate.” “‘expect,” “think.” “should” and “objective™ or similar expressions are intended to identify
forward looking statements. All such forward looking statements are based on the Company’s then current views
and assumptions and involve risks and uncertainties that include, among other things:

* the continued shift in the Company’s business from lower cost, local read meters toward more expensive,
value-added automatic meter reading (AMR) systems;

* the success or failure of newer Company products, including the Orion® radio frequency AMR system, the
absolute digital encoder (ADE™) and the Galaxy® fixed network AMR system:

* changes in competitive pricing and bids in both the domestic and foreign marketplaces, and particularly in
continued intense price competition on government bid contracts for lower cost, local read meters:

* the actions (or lack thereof) of the Company’s competitors;

* changes in the Company's relationships with its alliance partners, primarily its alliance partners that provide
AMR connectivity solutions, and particularly those that sell products that do or may compete with the
Company's products;

* changes in the general health of the United States and foreign economies, including housing starts in the
United States and overall industrial activity;

* increases in the cost and/or availability of needed raw materials and parts, including recent increases in the
cost of brass housings as a result of increases in the commodity prices for copper and zinc at the supplier
level and resin as a result of increases in petroleum and natural gas prices;

* the ability of the Company to maximize the value of the remaining assets in its discontinued French
operations;

* changes in foreign economic conditions. particularly currency fluctuations between the United States dollar
and the euro;

* the loss of certain single-source suppliers; and

* changes in laws and regulations, particularly laws dealing with the use of lead (which can be used in the
manufacture of certain meters incorporating brass housings) and Federal Communications Commission
rules affecting the use and/or licensing of radio frequencies necessary for AMR products.

All of these factors are beyond the Company’s control to varying degrees. Shareholders, potential investors and
other readers are urged to consider these factors carefully in evaluating the forward looking statements and are
cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward looking statements. The forward looking statements made in
this document are made only as of the date of this document and the Company assumes no obligation, and disclaims
any obligation, to update any such forward looking statements to reflect subsequent events or circumstances.

PART 1

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

The Company is a leading marketer and manufacturer of products, and a provider of services. using flow
measurement and control technologies serving markets worldwide. The Company was incorporated in 1905.
Available Information

The Company’s Internet address is hup://www.badgermeter.com. The Company makes available free of
charge (other than an investor’s own Internet access charges) through its Internet website its Annual Report on




Form 10-K. quarterly reports on Form 10-Q. current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports, on the
same day they are electronically filed with, or furnished to. the Securities and Exchange Commission. The
Company is not including the information contained on or available throu ghits website as a part of, or incorporating
such information by reference into, this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Markets and Products

The Company is a leading marketer and manufacturer of products using flow measurement and control
technologies developed both internally and with other technology companies. Its products are used to measure and
control the flow of liquids in a variety of applications. The Company’s product lines fall into two general categories,
utility and industrial. The utility category is comprised of two product lines, residential and commercial water
meters (with various automatic meter reading (AMR) technology systems). which are generally sold 10 water
utilities and constitute a majority of the Company's sales. Industrial product line sales comprise the remainder of the
Company’s sales and include automotive fluid meters, small precision valves, electromagnetic meters, impeller
flow meters and industrial process meters (all with related accessories and instrumentation).

Residential and commercial water meters and related systems are classified as local {or manual) read meters or
AMR products. Local read meters consist of a water meter and a register. With AMR meters, the register digitally
encodes the mechanical reading and its radio frequency transmitter communicates the data to a computerized
system that collects the data and sends it to specific utility computerized programs. Net sales and the corresponding
net earnings depend on unit volume and mix of products. with the Company generally earning higher margins on
residential AMR products (the impact of AMR on commercial products is not as significant given the higher sales
prices of commercial meters). The Company sells AMR products of other companies as well as its own proprietary
products, Orion® and the Galaxy® fixed network AMR system. Proprietary products generally have higher margins
than the other AMR products. Net sales and the corresponding net earnings are therefore also dependent on the mix
of AMR products between proprietary and non-proprietary products. Orion® is currently being sold as a walk-by/
drive-by system. but also has the ability to connect with a variety of other technologies, such as power line carrier,
broadband over power line, municipal WI-Fl and radio frequency systems to allow for remote reading of the data.
The Galaxy® fixed network AMR system was introduced in late 2005 and has had limited sales to date.

The basc level of annual business for utility products is driven by replacement units and. to a much lesser
cxtent. housing starts, Sales above the base level depend on conversions 1o AMR away from manual read meters.
The Company believes that conversion from local read meters to AMR products can accelerate replacements of
meters and result in growth, because it is estimated that only 20-25% of the water meter market has been converted
to AMR. Badger Meter’s strategy is to solve customers’ metering needs with its proprietary meter reading systems
or other systems available through alliances within the marketplace.

The industrial products generally serve niche markets and have in the past utilized technology derived from
utility products to serve industrial uses. As these markets evolve, these products are becoming more specialized to
meet industrial flow measurement and communication protocol requirements. Serving these markets aliows the
Company to expand its technologies into other areas of flow measurement and control, as well as utilize existing
capacity and spread fixed costs over a larger sales base.

The Company’s products are primarily manufactured and assembled in the Company's Milwaukee, Wiscon-
sin; Tulsa. Oklahoma; Nogales, Mexico; and Brno. Czech Repubilic facilities. Products are also assembled in the
Company’s Stuttgart, Germany facility.

The Company’s products are sold throughout the world through various distribution channels including direct
sales representatives. distributors and independent sales representatives. There is a moderate seasonal impact on
sales, primarily relating (o higher sales of certain utility products during the spring and summer months. No single
customer accounts for more than 10% of the Company’s sales.

Competition

There are competitors in each of the markets in which the Company sells its products, and the compelition
varies from moderate to intense. Major competitors include Sensus Metering Systems. Inc.. Neptune Technologies
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and AMCO Water Metering Systems for utility water meters. The Company’s primary competitor for the water
utility AMR products is Itron, Inc. While the Company sells its own proprietary AMR systems (e.g., Orion®), it is
also a reseller of the Itron products. A number of the Company’s competitors in certain markets have greater
financial resources. The Company believes it currently provides the leading technology in water meters and AMR
systems for water utilities. As a result of significant research and development activities, the Company enjoys
favorable patent positions for several of its products,

Backlog

The dollar amounts of the Company’s total backlog of unshipped orders at December 3 [, 2006 and 2005 were
$25.1 million and $28.6 million, respectively. The backlog is comprised of firm orders and signed contractual
commitments, or portions of such commitments, that call for shipment within 12 months. Backlog can be
significantly affected by the timing of orders for large utility projects.

Raw Materials

Raw materials used in the manufacture of the Company’s products include metal or alloys (such as bronze,
which uses copper as its main component, aluminum, stainless steel, cast iron, brass and stellite), plastic resins,
glass, microprocessors and other electronic subassemblies and components. There are multiple sources for these
raw materials, but the Company purchases most bronze castings and certain electronic subassemblies from single
suppliers. The Company believes these items would be available from other sources, but that the loss of its current
suppliers would result in higher cost of materials, delivery delays, short-term increases in inventory and higher
quality control costs in the short term. The Company carries business interruption insurance on key suppliers. World
commodity markets may also affect prices.

Research and Development

Expenditures for research and development activities relating to the development of new products, improve-
ment of existing products and manufacturing process improvements were $5.5 million in 2006, compared to
$5.3 million in 2005, and $4.6 million during 2004, Research and development activities are primarily sponsored by
the Company. The Company also engages in some joint research and development with other companies.

Intangible Assets

The Company owns or controls many patents, trademarks, trade names and license agreements in the United
States and other countries that relate to its products and technologies. No single patent, trademark, trade name or
license is material to the Company’s business as a whole.

Envirenmental Protection

The Company is subject to contingencies relative to compliance with federal, state and local provisions and
regulations relating to the protection of the environment. Currently, the Company is in the process of resolving
environmental issues related to two landfill sites. The Company does not believe the ultimate resolution of these
issues will have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position or results of operations, either from a
cash flow perspective or on the financial statements as a whole. Expenditures during 2006, 2005 and 2004 for
compliance with environmental control provisions and regulations were not material and the Company does not
anticipate any material future expenditures.

Employees

The Company and its subsidiaries employed 1,113 persons at December 31, 2006, 222 of whom are covered by
a collective bargaining agreement with District 10 of the International Association of Machinists. The Company is
currently operating under a four-year contract with the union, which expires October 31, 2008. The Company
believes it has good relations with the union and all of its employees.
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Foreign Operations and Export Sales

The Company has distribuiors and sales representatives throughout the world, Additionally, the Company has a
sales, assembly and distribution facility near Stuttgart, Germany; sales and customer service offices in Mexico,
Singapore and Slovakia: a manufacturing facility in Nogales, Mexico; and a manufacturing and sales facility in
Brno, Czech Republic. The Company exports products from the United States that are manufactured in Milwaukee.
Wisconsin and Tulsa, Oklahoma,

Information about the Company's foreign operations and export sales is included in Note 10 “Industry
Segment and Geographic Areas™ in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Part 11, {tem 8 of this 2006
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Financial Information about Industry Segments

The Company operates in one industry segment as a marketer and manufacturer of flow measurement and
control products as described in Note 10 “Industry Segment and Geographic Areas” in the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements in Part I1. ltem § of this 2006 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 1A, RISK FACTORS

Shareholders, potential investors and other readers are urged to consider the significant business risks
described below in addition to the other information set forth or incorporated by reference in this 2006 Annual
Report on Form (0-K. If any of the events contemplated by the following risks actually occur, our financial
condition or results of operations could be materially adversely affected. The following list of risk factors may not
be exhaustive. We operate in a continually changing business. economic and geopolitical environment, and new risk

actors may emerge from time to time. We can neither predict these new risk factors nor assess the impact, if any, on
the business. or the extent to which any factor, or combination of factors, may cause the actual results of operations
to differ materially,

Competitive pressures in the marketplace could decrease revenues and profits:

Competitive pressures in the marketplace for our products could adversely affect our competitive position.
leading to a possible loss of market share or u decrease in prices, either of which couid result in decreased revenues
and profits. We operate in an environment where competition varies from moderate to intense and a number of our
competitors have greater financial resources. Our competitors also include alliance partners that seil products that
do or may compete with our products, particularly those that provide autematic meter reading (AMR) connectivity
solutions. The principal elements of competition for our most significant product lines, residential and commercial
water meters (with various AMR technology systems) for the utility market, are price, product lechnology, quality
and service. The competitive environment is also affected by the movement toward AMR technologies away from
local (or manual) read meters, the demand for replacement units and. to a lesser extent, the number of housing starts
in the United States. For our industrial products, the competitive environment is affected by the general economic
health of the industrial sectors in the United States and Europe.

Technological developments could harm future success:

We believe that our future success depends. in part. on our ability to develop technologically advanced
products that meet or exceed appropriate industry standards. Although we believe that we currently have such
advantages over our competitors, maintaining such advantages will require continued investment in research and
development, sales and marketing. There can be no assurance that we will have sufficient resources to make such
investments or that we will be able to make the technological advances necessary to maintain such competitive
advantages. We are not currently aware of any emerging standards or new products that could render our existing
products obsolete,




The inability to obtain adequate supplies of raw materials could decrease profit margins and hinder
timely delivery to customers:

We are affected by the availability and prices for raw materials, including metal or alloys (such as bronze,
which uses copper as its main component. aluminum, stainless steel. cast iron, brass and stellite), plastic resins,
glass, microprocessors and other clectronic subassemblies and components that are used in the manufacturing
process. The inability 1o obtain adequate supplies of raw materials for our products at favorable prices could have a
material adverse effect on our business. financial condition or results of operations by decreasing profit margins and
by hindering timely delivery to customers. In the past. we have been able to offset increases in raw materials by
increased sales prices. active materials management, product engineering programs and the diversity of matenials
used in the production processes. However, we cannot be certain that we will be able to accomplish this in the future.
Since we do not control the actual production of these raw materials, there may be delays caused by interruption in
the production of raw materials for reasons that are beyond our control. World commodity markets and inflation
may also affect raw material prices.

A significant economic downturn could cause a material adverse impact on sales and operating results:

As a supplier of products primarily to water utilities. we may be adversely affected by generul £conomic
downturns that affect independent distributors, large city utilities. private water companies and numerous smaller
municipal water utilities. These customers may delay capital projects. including non-critical maintenance and
upgrades. during economic downturns. While we also serve several industrial markets to avoid a dependency on any
one. a significant downturn in these markets could also cause a material adverse impact on sales and operating
results. In addition, a terrorist attack such as the one on September 11. 2001 could cause instability in world
markets. which. we believe. could temporarily impact product purchases in the industry. Therefore. any significant
downturn in general economic conditions, as well as in our customers’ markets, could result in a reduction in
demand for our products and services and could harm the business.

Failure to manufacture quality products could impact the ability to attract and retain customers, which
could have a material adverse effect on revenues and profitability:

If we fail to maintain and enforce quality control and testing procedures, our products will not meet the
performance standards in the industry. Product quality and performance ar¢ a priority for us since our preducts are
used in various industries where precise control of fluids is essential, and we believe we have a very good reputation
for product quality. Substandard products would seriously harm our reputation, resulting in both a loss of current
custonters to competitors and damage to our ability (o attract new Customers, which could have a material adverse
effect on revenues and profitability.

Changes in environmental or regulatory requirements could entail additional expenses that could
decrease profitability:

We cannot predict the nature. scope or effect of future environmental or regulatory requirements to which our
operations might be subject or the manner in which existing or future laws will be administered or interpreted.
Compliance with such laws or regulations may entail additional expenses that could decrease profitability, We are
subject to a variety of environmental laws, such as lead content in certain meters incorporating brass housings, and
regulatory laws affecting the use and/or licensing of radio frequencies necessary for AMR products, as well as
regulations related to customs and trade practices. Currently. the cost of complying with existing laws does not have
a material effect on the business or financial position.

Risks related to foreign markets could decrease profitability:

Since we sell products worldwide as well as manufacture products in several countries, we are subject to risks
associated with doing business internationally. These risks include changes in foreign currency exchange rates,
changes in a specific country's or region’s political or economic conditions, potentially negative consequences from
changes in tax laws or regulatory requirements, differing labor regulations, and the difficulty of managing
widespread operations.




ITEM IB. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

The principal facilities utilized by the Company at December 31, 2006 are listed below. Except as indicated,
the Company owns all such facilities in fee simple. The Company believes that its facilities are generally well
maintained and have sufficient capacity for its current needs,

Approximate arep

Location Principal use (square feet)
Milwaukee, Wisconsin .. ........ ... ... . .. Manufacturing and offices 323.000
Tulsa, Oklahoma ........ ... .. .. . .. .. .. Manufacturing and offices 59,500
Rio Rico. Arizona . ....... ... .. . .. .. . .. Manufacturing and offices 36,000
Nogales. Mexico ............. ... .. ... . . Manufacturing and offices 62,300(1)
Nogales, Mexico ............ ... ... .. . . Manufacturing and offices 41,300
Neuffen, Germany . ........... ... .. . . . . . Assembly and offices 1,500
Stuttgart, Germany .. ........... ... . ... . Assembly and offices 31,800(2)
Brno. Czech Republic. . .............. ... .. Manufacturing and offices 24,300
Nancy, France ... ... ... .. .. ... ... ... Assembly and offices 52,500

(1) Leased facility. Lease term expires January 31, 2008.
(2) Leased facility, Lease term expires June 30, 2007,

In 2005, the Company purchased land and an existing building with 11,500 square feet in Neuffen, Germany.
The Company is in the process of constructing an 8.500 square foot addition to the existing building, It expects to
occupy this facility in 2007 and vacate the above-mentioned leased Stuttgart facility when the lease expires for that
facility in June 2007, In addition, the Company purchased land in Nogales, Mexico in 2005 where a 41,300 square
foot building was constructed in 2006. This new facility replaced the Company’s Rio Rico, Arizona facility, which
was held for sale at the end of 2006. In connection with discontinuing the operations of the Company’s French
subsidiaries, the facility in Nancy, France was also held for sale at the end of 2006.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

There are currently no material legal proceedings pending with respect to the Company. The more significant
legal proceedings are discussed below.

The Company is a defendant in numerous multi-party asbestos lawsuits pending in various states. These
lawsuits assert claims alleging that certain industrial products were manufactured by the defendants and were the
cause of injury and harm. The Company is vigorously defending itse!f against these alleged claims. Although it is
not possible to predict the ultimate outcome of these matters, the Company does not believe the ultimate resolution
of these issues will have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position or results of operations, either
from a cash flow perspective or on the financial statements as a whole,

The Company is subject to contingencies relative to the protection of the environment, Information about the
Company’s compliance with environmental regulations is included in Part I, Item | of this 2006 Annual Report on
Form 10-K under the heading “Environmental Protection.”

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of the Company’s shareholders during the quarter ended December 31,
2006.




Executive Officers of the Company

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the executive officers of the Company.

Age at
Name Position 2/28/2007
Richard A. Meeusen ... ............ Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer 52
William R, A. Bergum. ... ... ....... Vice President — General Counsel and Secretary 42
Bryan L. Cieslak . .. .. ....... ... ... Vice President — QOperations 41
Ronald H.Dix. . ............ ... ... Senior Vice President — Administration 62
Horst E. Gras .. .................. Vice President — International Operations 51
Richard E. Johnson . ... ............ Senior Vice President — Finance, Chief Financial 52
Officer and Treasurer
Beverly LP. Smiley . .. ............. Vice President — Controller 57
DennisJ. Webb .. ............ . ... Vice President — Sales, Marketing and Engineering 59
Daniel D. Zandron. . ... ............ Vice President — Business Development 58

There are no family relationships between any of the executive officers. All of the officers are elected annually
at the first meeting of the Board of Directors held after each annual meeting of the sharcholders. Each officer holds
office unti] his successor has been elected or until his death, resignation or removal. There is no arrangement or
understanding between any executive officer and any other person pursuant to which he was elected as an officer.

Mr. Meeusen was elected Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer in April 2004. Mr. Meeusen served
as President and Chief Executive Officer from April 2002 to April 2004, and as President from November 2001 to
Aprit 2002.

Mr. Bergum was elected Vice President — General Counsel and Secretary in February 2006, and served as
General Counsel from September 2003 to February 2006. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Bergum served as
Corporate Counsel of Onyx Waste Services, Inc. from March 2003 to September 2003, and as Vice President and
Assistant General Counsel a1 Fortis Insurance Company prior to March 2003,

Mr. Cieslak was elected Vice President — Operations in August 2005. Prior to joining the Company in August
2005, Mr. Cieslak served as Vice President and General Manager of Trombetta LLC for more than five years.

Mr. Dix was elected Senior Vice President — Administration in February 2006, and served as Senior Vice
President -—— Administration and Secretary from February 2005 to February 2006. Mr. Dix served as Senior Vice
President — Administration/Human Resources from May 2003 to February 2005 and Secretary from August 2003
to February 2005. Mr. Dix served as Vice President — Administration and Human Resources from November 2001
to May 2003.

Mr. Gras has served as Vice President — International Operations for more than five years.

Mr. Johnson was elected Senior Vice President — Finance, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer in May
2003. Mr. Johnson served as Vice President — Finance, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer from February 2001
to May 2003.

Ms. Smiley has served as Vice President — Controller for more than five years.

Mr. Webb was elected Vice President — Sales, Marketing and Engineering in August 2003, and served as Vice
President — Engineering from November 2001 to August 2005.

Mr. Zandron has served as Vice President — Business Development for more than five years.
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PART 11

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT’S COMMON STOCK, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Information required by this Item is set forth in Note |l “Unaudited: Quarterly Results of Operations,
Common Stock Price and Dividends™ in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Part I1. Item 8§ of this
2006 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

The following information in Item 5 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K is not deemed to be “soliciting
material” or to be “filed” with the SEC or subject to Regulation 14A or 14C under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 or 10 the liabilities of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and will not be deemed to be
incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
except to the extent we specifically incorporate it by reference into such a filing.

The following graph compares on a cumulative basis the yearly percentage change since January 1, 2002 in
(1) the total shareholder return on the Common Stock with (b) the total return on the American Stock Exchange
Corporate Index and (c) the total return of a peer group made up of 11 companies in similar industries and with
similar market capitalization us selected by an independent consulting firm. The graph assumes $100 invested on
December 31. 2001. It further assumes the reinvestment of dividends. The returns of each component company in
the peer group have also been weighted based on such company’s relative market capitalization.

Comparison of Five-Year Cumulative Total Return of Company,
Peer Group and Broad Market
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2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

December M 2001 2082 2003 2004 2005 2006
Badger Meter. ... ... ... . ... . .. . $100.00  $148.04  $181.71  $292.52 $389.16  $555.80
Peer Group*. .. ... ... . .. .. .. . . . . $100.00 3 8688 $12947  $129.65 $135.26  $170.58
Broad Market**. . .. . . $100.00  $ 96.01  $130.68 $149.65 $165.03  $184.77

* Peer Group consists of Axcess International, Inc.. Badger Meter. Inc., Bio-Rad Labs. Inc., Candela Corpo-
ration, Frequency Electronics, Inc., Innovex. Inc.. Integral Vision. Inc.. K-Tron International. Inc.. Keithley
Instruments, Inc., Newpon Corporation, and Research Frontiers. Inc.

** Broad Market consists of the AMEX Market index.




ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

BADGER METER, INC.

Ten Year Summary of Selected Consolidated Financial Data

Years ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 19938 1997
(Dollars in thousands except per share data)
Operating results
Netsales . ... ... ... §220.754 203,637 188,663 168,728 160.350 138,537 146389 150877 143813 130771
Reseurch and development |, .., .. .. ... .. $§ 5458 5,343 4572 6070 5.658 5422 6,562 6,012 6.105 4,397
Eamings from continuing operations before

income kaxes .. ..., ... L. L., § 27489 35664 200325 15658 12359 5010 10727 15659 13364 10,205
Eamings from continuing operations . . .. . .. $ 16568  16E64 12056 9.798 7.819 3364 6,941 9,700 8247 6,522
Loss from discontineed operations. . . . .. ... $ 90200 (2911 (2423 (222D (548) nfa nfa na n/a nfa
Netearmings. . ................ .... $ 7548 13233 9,633 1577 721 1364 6,941 9,700 8,247 6,522
Eamings from continuing operations to sales . . 7.2% 14% 64% 5.8% 4.9% 24% 4.7% 6.4% 5.7% 5.0%
Per Common share
Busic carnings from contipuing operations . . .. $ 119 1.20 0.9] 0.76 0.62 027 0.53 .70 0.57 0.46
Basic loss from discontinued operations . . . . . 5 (0.65) 0.22) (0.18) 0.17) (0.04) nfa nfa na nfa nfa
Total basic eamings . ... ... ... . ... .. 3 054 098 0.73 0.59 0.58 0.27 0.53 0.70 0.57 046
Diluted carnings from continving operations. . . $ 115 115 0.89 0.75 0.59 0.26 0.50 0.65 0.53 042
Diluted loss from discontinued operations . ... §  (0.63) 0.20) (0:18) (0.17} (0.04) nfa nfa nf na na
Total diluted carnings . .. .. ... .. .. ..., $ 052 0.95 0.71 0.58 0.53 0.26 0.50 0.65 033 0.42
Cash dividends declared:

Common Stock. . . ................ § 03 029 0.28 0.27 026 0.25 0.22 0.18 0.15 .12
Pricerange —high. .. ... ... ... . ..., $ 3220 25.63 16.00 9.94 8.50 831 9.35 10.03 10.16 14.38
Prcerange —low . .. ... .. ......... $ 1951 13.23 8353 6.13 5.5 4.94 575 0.85 6.25 4.54
Closing price .. ................... $ 2770 19.62 14.98 954 8.00 5.61 5.75 7.54 891 10.19
Book valoe* . . . ... ... ... ....... $ 507 5.36 477 4.19 374 3.38 3.38 322 4.71 4.4
Shares Quistanding at year-end
Common Stock .. ... ... ... ... .. .. .. 14,154 13.69% 13444 13170 12,882 12720 12828 13360  10.152 9,776
Financial position
Working capial* . ... ..., ... ... ... L. $ 33648 32923 25461 25946 6825 23170 6822 150 10776 13.870
Curent ratio* , .. ... .............., 17wl 18wl 16wl 1710l lLlwl 20w]1 12wi t3tol 13wl [(Swl
et cash provided by

OpeRations. . . . ... ... $ 16750 18361 6,297 15221 12234 B387 13251 15652 15,007 5,178
Cupital expenditures . ... ., ... ... ... $ 11.060 0,088 5582 5214 5914 5,007 6,403 49.981 17.926 8.349
Totalassets .. ... . ... ........ $139.383 145.867 142961 133851 126463 101,375 98023 10LI86 96945  82.297
Short-term and current portion of long-term

debt ... ... $ 17037 13328 22887 9,188 26,290 8264 23017 163589 14315 11.245
Longtermdebt . . ... ... ... .. ... .. .. § 5928 15360 14819 24450 13046 20498 5944 1149 2,600 928
Sharcholders™ equity . . .. ... .. .. ... ... $ 71819 73416 64066 55171 48005 43002 43319 43009  47.848 41467
Debt as u percent of toral et and equity* . . . 268% 1%  370%  39%  450%  40.01%  40.1% 395% 26.0%  22.7%
Return on shareholders” equity* ... .. ... .. B%  220%  188%  178%  16.3% 18%  160% 26% 172%  157%
Priceleamnings matio® , . .., ... ... .. 24.1 17.1 16,8 12.7 11.1 21.6 115 1.6 16.8 24.6

(}) The Company's French operations have been presented as discontinued operations for 2002 through 2006, the

years of ownership.

(2) 2006 amounts include the adoption of SFAS 123(R), “Share-Based Payments,” effective January 1, 2006 and
the adoption of SFAS 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement

Plans,” effective as of December 31, 2006.

(3} Per share amounts and numbers of shares have been restated to reflect the 2-for-1 stock split completed on

June 15, 2006.

* Description of calculations:

9

Working capital equals total current assets less total current liabilities.

Book value equals total shareholders® equity at year-end divided by the number of common shares outstanding.




Current ratio equals total current assets divided by total current liabilities.

Debt as a percent of total debt and equity equals total debt (the sum of short-term debt, current portion of long-
term debt and long-term debt) divided by the sum of total debt and total shareholders™ equity at year-end. The
debt of the discontinued French operations is included in this calculation for 2002 through 2006, the vears of
ownership,

Return on shareholders™ equity equals net earnings from continuing operations divided by total shareholders’
equity at year-end.

Price/earnings ratio equals the closing stock price for common stock divided by diluted earnings per share from
continuing operations.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Business Description and Overview

The Company is a leading marketer and manufacturer of products using flow measurement and control
technologies developed both internally and with other technology companies. Its products are used to measure and
control the flow of liquids in a variety of appiications. The Company’s product lines fall into two general categories.
utility and industrial. The wtility category is comprised of two product lines, residential and commercial water
meters (with various auvtomatic meter reading (AMR) technology systems), which are generally sold to water
utilities and constitute a majority of the Company’s sales. Industrial product line sales comprise the remainder of the
Company’s sales and include automotive fluid meters, small precision valves, electromagnetic meters, impeller
flow meters and industrial process meters (all with related accessories and instrumentation).

Residential and commercial water meters and related systems are classified as local (or manual) read meters or
AMR products. Local read meters consist of a water meter and a register. With AMR meters, the register digitally
encodes the mechanical reading and its radio frequency transmitter communicates the data to a computerized
system that collects the data and sends it to specific utility computerized programs. Net sales and the corresponding
net earnings depend on unit volume and mix of products, with the Company generally earning higher margins on
residential AMR products (the impact of AMR on commercial products is not as significant given the higher sales
prices of commetcial meters). The Company sells AMR products of other companies as well as its own proprietary
products, Orion® and the Galaxy® fixed network AMR system. Proprietary products generally have higher margins
than the other AMR products. Net sales and the corresponding net earnings are therefore also dependent on the mix
of AMR products between proprietary and non-proprietary products. Orion® is currently being sold as a walk-by/
drive-by system. but also has the ability to connect with a variety of other technologies. such as power line carrier.
broadband over power line, municipal WI-FI and radio frequency systems to allow for remote reading of the daia.
The Galaxy® fixed network AMR system was introduced in late 2005 and has had limited sales to date,

There is a base level of annual business for utility products driven by replacement units and, to a much lesser
extent, housing starts. Sales above the base level depend on conversions to AMR away from manual read meters.
The Company believes that conversion from local read meters 1o AMR products can accelerate replacements of
meters and result in growth, because it is estimated that only 20-25% of the water meter market has been converted
to AMR. Badger Meter's strategy is to solve customers’ metering needs with its proprietary meter reading systems
or other systems available through alliances within the marketplace,

The industrial products generally serve niche markets and have in the past utilized 1echnology derived from
utility products to serve industrial uses. As these markets evolve, these products are becoming more specialized to
meet industrial flow measurement and communication protocol requirements. Serving these markets allows the
Company to expand its technologies into other areas of flow measurement and control, as well as utilize existing
capacity and spread fixed costs over a larger sales base.

Business Trends

During 2006. the Company carefully evaluated strategic alternatives for its subsidiaries in Nancy, France,
including restructuring. sale or shutdown. In the third quarter of 2006. the Company began the process under French
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law to obtain the requisite governmental and regulatory approvals to close the operation. On October 16, 2006, the
decision was finalized. The Company continues to believe that this decision will result in total after-tax charges
ranging from $6.0 million to $8.0 million. In 2006, $5.4 million of charges, net of the income tax benefit, were
recognized, with the remainder to be recognized in 2007 as assets are liquidated and liabilities are settled. Al results
associuted with the Company’s French operations have been removed from continuing operations and are presented
as results of discontinued operations. See Note 3 in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for further
discussion. All remaining comments in this section relale to continuing operations.

As noted above, the Company sells AMR products of other companies as well as its own proprietary product,
Orion®. The Company currently has a distribution agreement under which it resells products produced by itron, Inc.
Prior to the Company’s introduction of its own proprietary Orion® products, Itron® water utility-related products
were a significant contributor to the Company’s results. The Company’s Orion® products directly compete with
Itron® water AMR products and, in recent years, many of the Company s customers have selected Orion® products.
As a result, the Company’s 2005 annual sales of Itron® products decreased approximately 12%, while Orion® sales
doubled compared to 2004. This trend continued in 2006 as sales of Itron® products decreased nearly 16% while
Orion® sales increased 39% compared to 2005. The Company expects this trend to continue, although it also
believes that Itron® products will remain a significant component of utility sales. Decreases in sales of Itron®
products have been offset by increases in sales of Orion® products, which produce a higher gross margin than itron®
products. As a result, the Company does not expect this trend to have a material negative impact on the Company’s
financial position or results of operations.

Results of Operations

Net Sales

Badger Meter's net sales of $229.8 mitlion increased $26. 1 million, or 12.8%, for 2006 compared to 2005. The
increase was the net result of sales increases in most of the Company’s product lines driven primarily by increased
volumes of product sold.

Residential and commercial water meter net sales represented 80.9% of total net sales in 2006 compared with
79.9% in 2005, These sales increased $23.2 million, or 14.3%, in 2006 to $185.9 million from $162.7 million in
2005. Unit volume increased in residential and commercial local (or manual) read water meters as well as meters
utilizing AMR technologies. AMR technologies carry a higher price, which also contributed to the increase in net
sales. In addition, net sales increased in part due to a significant increase over 2005 levels for the sales volumes of
Orion®, the Company's proprietary AMR system, which has higher margins than other AMR products.

Industrial sales are affected by economic conditions, domestically and internationally. in each of the markets
served by the various product lines. Industrial product net sales increased 7.1% in 2006 over 2003 levels. In total, the
industrial products represented 19.1% of total net sales in 2006 compared to 20.1% in 2005. Industrial product net
sales increased $2.9 mitlion, or 7.1% to $43.9 million in 2006 compared with $41.0 million in 2005 driven primarily
by higher sales of automotive fluid and electromagnetic meters.

International sales are comprised primarily of sales of small valves, electromagnetic meters and automotive
fluid meters in Europe. sales of electromagnetic meters and water meters and related technologics in Latin America,
and sales of valves and other metering products throughout the world. In Europe, sales are made primarily in euros
and other currencies. Other international sales are made in U.S. dollars or local currencies. International sales
increased 14.0% to $21.2 million in 2006 from $18.6 miltion in 2005 due principally to higher sales of industrial
products in Europe.

Residential and commercial water meter net sales represented 79.9% of total net sales in 2005 compared with
79.6% in 2004. These sales increased $12.6 million, or 8.3% in 2005 to $162.7 million from $150. [ million in 2004,
Unit volume increased in meters utilizing AMR technologies as well as local (or manual) read meters. AMR
technologies carry a higher price, which also contributed to the increase in net sales. In addition, net sales increased
in part due to a significant increase over 2004 levels for the sales votumes of Orion®, the Company's proprietary
AMR system which has higher margins than other AMR products.
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In total, the industrial products represented 20.1% of total net sales in 2005 compared with 20.4% in 2004.
Industrial product sales increased $2.4 million 1o $41.0 million in 2005 compared with $38.6 million in 2004. All of
the product lines showed growth over the 2004 levels, partially due to the effects of the strengthening euro.

International sales increased 4.5% to $18.6 million in 2005 from $17.8 million in 2004 due principally to the effects
of the strengthening euro. Without the effects from foreign exchange. international sales were the same as 2004.

Gross Margins

Gross margins were 33.4%. 36.1% and 34.5% for 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Gross margins decreased
between 2006 and 2005 due to higher cost of materials. particularly copper, the main component of the brass
housings used to make meters. This was mitigated somewhat by the higher mix of AMR versus local read meters, a
higher percentage of Qrion® AMR technology versus other non-proprietary AMR products, and price increases
initiated in mid-2006. Gross margins increased between 2005 and 2004 as 4 result of a higher mix of AMR sales
versus local read meters as well as a higher percentage of Orion® AMR technology versus non-proprietary AMR
products, offset somewhat by higher metal costs.

Operating Expenses

Selling. engineering and administration costs increased 3.4% in 2006 over 2005 levels due to normal
inflationary increases and increased costs associated with higher sales. Selling, engineering and administration
costs increased 6.4% in 2005 over 2004 levels due 1o higher research and development costs, increased costs
associated with higher sales. one-time expenses associated with the Company’s [00th anniversary celebration and
normal inflationary pressures.

interest Expense

Interest expense was approximately $0.2 million less in 2006 than in 2005 due primarily to lower overall debt
balances. Interest expense was approximately $0.2 million higher in 2005 than in 2004. This was the net impact of
lower debt levels, offset by increasing interest rates and 1 new long-term loan replacing short-term debt.

[ncome Taxes

Income taxes as a percentage of earnings from continuing operations before income taxes were 39.7%. 37.0%
and 40.7% for 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The increase in the provision for income taxes between 2006 and
2005 was due to the inability to claim the estimated effects of the Section 199: Production Activities Deduction as
permitted under the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 due 10 the tax positions to be taken on the Company’s 2006
tax return related to its French operations and the settlement of certain state tax audits. The decrease in 2005 from 2004
was due to slightly lower state taxes and the estimated effects of the Section [99: Production Activities Deduction.

Earnings and Earnings Per Share from Continuing Qperations

As aresult of the above-mentioned items, earnings from continuing operations were $16.6 million, $16.2 mil-
lion and $12.1 miltion in 2006, 2005 and 2004. respectively. On a diluted basis, earnings per share from continuing
operations were $1.15. $1.15 and $0.89, respectively. for the same periods.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The main sources of liquidity for the Company are cash from operations and borrowing capacity. Cash
provided by operations in 2006 was $16.8 million versus $18.4 million in 2005. The decline between years was due
principally to lower earnings. Cash provided by operations in 2005 was $18.4 million. an increase of $12.1 million
compared to 2004. The increase was the net result of increased net earnings, reduced inventory levels and the timing
of payments of certain current liabilities. offset by increased receivables.

Receivables increased 8.2% between December 31, 2005 and 2006 due primarily to higher fourth quarter sales.
Inventories increased 21.7% due to longer tead times for electronic components, higher levels of parts due to
increased sales and higher costs of the materials.
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Prepaid expenses and other currem assets increased between December 31, 2005 and 2006 primarily because
the December 31, 2006 amounts include $0.7 million of remaining book value related to the Rio Rico, Arizona
facility that is classified as held for sale.

Capital expenditures totaled $11.1 million in 2006, $9.1 million in 2005 and $5.6 million in 2004. These
amounts vary due to the timing of capital expenditures. Included in capital expenditures for 2006 is approximately
$6.2 million related to the construction of new facilities in Mexico and Germany. The Company expects to spend
approximately $8.5 million on the construction of another facility in Mexico in 2007 in addition to its normal leve)
of capital expenditures. The Company believes capacity exists to increase production levels with minimal
additional capital expenditures after the completion of these facilities,

In anticipation of the adoption of Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statement No. 158,
“Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans” (SFAS 158), the Company
made no contributions to its pension plan in 2006. Because of this, the Company was required to recognize an
additional minimum pension liability at its September 30, 2006 measurement date pursuant to the provisions of
FASB Statement No. 87, “Employers Accounting for Pensions” (SFAS 87), which was combined with the related
existing prepaid pension asset, resuiting in a net accrued pension liability. See Note 7, “Employee Benefit Plans™, in
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Part I, [tem 8 of this 2006 Annual Report on Form 10-K for
further discussion. Assumptions for determining pension and other postretirement benefits, expected return on
assets and annual expense are reviewed and, if appropriate, adjusted annuvally. The impacts of hypothetical changes
in certain assumptions are difficult to determine as economic factors can often impact multiple assumptions and
inputs at the same time. The Company believes its current assumptions are reasonable. At December 31, 2006, the
market value of the assets in the Company’s pension plan was $46.1 million compared to $46.5 million at
December 31, 2005.

The amount of net goodwill recorded at December 31, 2006 and 2005 was $7.0 million and $6.6 million,
respectively. The net increase of $0.4 million was due to the strengthening of the U.S. doliar versus the euro.

Short-term debt increased $9.2 million in 2006 while total outstanding long-term debt (both the current and
long-term portions) decreased $14.9 million. This net reduction of debt was due to cash generated from operations.
None of the Company’s debt carries financial covenants or is secured.

The $0.8 million increase in payables between years is primarily the result of the timing of purchases. Accrued
compensation and employee benefits increased $0.2 million due (o increased incentive costs associated with
increased sales and earnings levels. Income and other taxes decreased $1.0 million as a result of the timing of tax
payments.

Common Stock and capital in excess of par value both increased during 2006 due primarily to stock issued, and
cash received, in connection with the exercise of stock options, grants of restricted stock and the tax benefit on stock
options. Employee benefit stock decreased in 2006 due to the adoption of FASB Statement No. 123(R). “Share-
Based Payments”, which required the reclassification of amounts from employee benefit stock to capital in excess
of par and a $171.000 payment on the Badger Meter Employee Savings and Stock Ownership Plan (“*ESSOP”) loan.
Treasury stock decreased due to shares issued in connection the Company’s dividend reinvestment program.,

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) decreased by $12.0 million primanily due to the Company
recognizing an additional minimum pension liability at its September 30 measurement date and the impact of the
adoption of SFAS 158, offset by a $1.2 million increase in foreign currency translation adjustments due primarily to
the strengthening of the euro versus the U.S. dolar.

Badger Meter’s financial condition remains strong. The Company believes that its operating cash {lows,
available borrowing capacity including $28.4 million of unused credit lines, and its ability to raise capital provide
adequate resources to fund ongoing operating requirements, future capital expenditures and development of new
products. The Company continues to take advantage of its local commercial paper market and from time 1o time
may convert short-term debt inte long-term debt.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company guarantees the debt of the Budger Meter Officers’ Voting Trust (“BMOVT™), from which the
BMOVT obtained loans from a bank on behalf of the officers of the Company in order to purchase shares of the
Company's Common Stock. The officers* loan amounts are secured by the Company’s shares that were purchased
with the loan proceeds. There have heen no loans made to officers by the BMOVT since July 2002. The Company
has guaranteed $0.5 million and $1.1 million of the BMOVT s debt at December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005,
respectively. The current loan matures in April 2007, at which time it is expected 1o be renewed. The fair market
value of this guarantee at December 31, 2006 continues to be insignificant because the collateral value of the shares
exceeds the loan amount. It is the Company’s intention to eliminate the BMOVT by December 31, 2010, because it
no longer fulfills its original purpose of providing officers with loans to purchase Common Stock. The Company has
no other off-balance sheet arrangements.

Contractual Obligations

The Company guarantees the outstanding debt of the ESSOP that is recorded in long-term debt, offset by a
similar amount of unearned compensation that has been recorded as a reduction of shareholders™ equity. The loan
amount is secured by shares of the Company’s Common Stock. Payments of $171.000 and $150.000 in 2006 and
2005, respectively. reduced the loan to $744.000 at December 31. 2006. The terms of the loan allow variable
payments of principal with the final principal and interest payment due on April 30, 2008.

The foliowing table includes the Company’s significant contractual obligations as of December 31, 2006.
There are no undisclosed guarantees.

Payments due by period

Less than 1-3
Total 1 year years
(In thousands)

Current portion and long-term debt. ... _....... ... ... .. . . .. 312,631 $7.446  $5,185
Interest on current portion and long-term debt . ... ... ... ... ... 731 354 k¥
Construction of fucilities .............. .. ... ... . .. .. . 541 541 —
ESSOP 744 — 744
Royalty commitments ... o0 0 150 150 —
Operating leases . ......... .. ... ... ... . ... ... ... ... 949 836 113
Total contractual obligations. . ......... ... ... . $15746 $9.327  $6,419

Other than items included in the preceding table. as of December 31, 2006, the Company had no additional
material purchase obligations other than those created in the ordinary course of business related to inventory and
property, plant and equipment, which generally have terms of less than 90 days. The Company also has long-term
obligations related to its pension and postretirement plans which are discussed in detail in Note 7 “Employee
Benefit Plans™ in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Part 11, Item 8 of this 2006 Annual Report on
Form 10-K. As of the most recent actuarial measurement date. no pension plan contributions are anticipated in 2007
and postretirement medical claims are paid as they are submitted. Postretirement medical claims are anticipated to
be $777.000 in 2007 based on actuarial estimates: however. these amounts can vary significantly from year to year
because the Company is self-insured,

Critical Accounting Policies and Use of Estimates

The Company’s accounting policies are more fully described in Note 1 “Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies™ in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Part 11, Ttem 8 of this 2006 Annual Report on
Form 10-K. As discussed in Nate |, the preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. The Company’s more significant estimates relate
primarily to several judgmental reserves: allowance for doubtful accounts, reserve for obsolete inventories,
warranty and after-sale costs reserve, and the health care reserve for claims incurred, but not reported. Each of
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these judgmental reserves is evaluated quarterly and is reviewed with the Company’s Disclosure Committee and the
Audit and Compliance Committee of the Board of Directors. The basis for the reserve amounts is determined by
analyzing the anticipated exposure for each account, and then selecting the most likely amount based upon
historical experience and various other considerations that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
This method has been used for all years in the presented financials and has been used consistently throughout each
year. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

The criteria used for calculating each of the reserve amounts varies by type of reserve. For the allowance for
doubtful accounts reserve, significant past due balances are reviewed in conjunction with applying historical write-
off ratios to the remaining balances. The calculation for the obsolete inventories reserve is determined by analyzing
the relationship between the age and quantity of items on hand versus estimated usage to determine if excess
quantities exist. The calculation for warranty and after-sale costs reserve uses criteria that includes known potential
problems on past sales as well as historical claim ratios for current sales and current warranty trends. The health care
reserve for claims incurred, but not reported is determined by using medical cost trend analyses, reviewing
subsequent payments made and estimating unbilled amounts. The changes in the balances of these reserves at
December 31, 2006 compared to the prior year were due to normal business conditions and are not deemed to be
significant. While the Company continually tries to improve its estimates, no significant changes in the underlying
processes are expected in 2007,

Other Matters

The Company believes it is in compliance with the various environmental statutes and regulations to which the
Company’s domestic and international operations are subject. Currently, the Company is in the process of resolving
environmental issues related to two landftll sites. Proviston has been made for estimated settlement costs, which are
not material.

The Company is also a defendant in numerous multi-party asbestos lawsuits pending in various states. These
lawsuits assert claims alleging that certain industrial products were manufactured by the defendants and were the
cause of injury and harm. The Company is vigorously defending itself against these claims. Although it is not
possible to predict the ultimate cutcome of these matters, the Company does not believe the ultimate resolution of
these issues will have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position or results of operations, either
from a cash flow perspective or on the financial statements as a whaole.

Market Risks

In the ordinary course of business, the Company is exposed to various market risks. The Company operates in
an environment where competition varies from moderate to intense. The Company believes it currently provides the
leading technology in water meters and AMR systems for water utilities. A number of the Company’s competitors
in certain markets have greater financial resources. Competitors also include alliance partners that sell products that
do or may compete with our products, particularly those that provide AMR connectivity solutions, In addition, the
market’s level of acceptance of the Company’s newer products may have a significant effect on the Company’s
results of operations. As a result of significant research and development activities, the Company enjoys favorable
patent positions for several of its products.

The Company’s ability to generate operating income and to increase profitability depends somewhat on the
general heaith of the United States and foreign economies, the overall industrial activity, and to a lesser extent,
housing starts in the United States. In addition, changes in governmenial laws and regulations, particularly laws
dealing with the use of lead or rules affecting the use and/or licensing of radio frequencies necessary for AMR
products may impact the results of operations. These factors are largely beyond the Company’s control and depend
on the economic condition and regulatory environment of the geographic region of the Company’s operations.

The Company has evaluated its worldwide operations to determine if any risks and uncertainties exist that
could severely impact its operations in the near term. The Company does not belicve that there are any significant
near-term risks. However. the Company does rely on single suppliers for certain castings and components in several
of its product lines. Although alternate sources of supply exist for these items, loss of certain suppliers could
temporarily disrupt operations in the short term. The Company attempts to mitigate these risks by working closely
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with key suppliers. purchasing minimal amounts from alternative suppliers and by purchasing business interruption
insurance where uppropriate.

Raw materials used in the manufacture of the Company’s products include metal or alloys (such as bronze,
which uses copper as its main component, aluminum, stainless steel, cast iron, brass and stellite), plastic resins,
glass. microprocessors and other electronic subassemblies and components. The price and availability of raw
materials is influenced by economic and industry conditions, including supply and demand factors that are difficult
1o anticipate and cannot be controlled by the Company. Commodity risk is managed by keeping abreast of economic
conditions and locking in purchase prices for quantitics that correspond to the Company’s forecasted usage.

The Company's foreign currency risk relates to the sales of products to foreign customers. The Company uses
lines of credit with U.S. and European banks to offset currency exposure related to European receivables and other
monetary assets. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company’s foreign currency net monetary assets were
substantially offset by comparable debt resulling in no material exposure 1o the results of operations.

The Company typically does not hold or issue derivative instruments and has a policy specifically prohibiting
the use of such instruments for trading purposes.

The Company's short-term debt on December 3[. 2006 was floating rate debt with market values approx-
imating carrying value. Fixed rate debt was principally a U.S. dollar term loan with a 5.59% interest rate and a euro
dollar revolving term loan with a 5.28% interest rate. For the short-term floating rate debt, future annual interest
costs will fluctuate based upon short-term interest rates. For the short-term debt on hand on December 31. 2006, the
effect of a 1% change in interest rates is approximately $151.000.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES OF MARKET RISK

Information required by this ltem is set forth in Part i1 item 7 “Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations™ under the heading “Market Risks™ in this 2006 Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTAL DATA

BADGER METER, INC.

Management’s Annual Report on
Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal conirol over
financial reporting, as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The
Company’s internal contro! over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to risk that controls
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

The Company’s management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2006 using the criteria set forth in fnternal Control — Integrated Framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this assessment, the
Company’s management believes that, as of December 31, 2006. the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting was effective based on those criteria.

The Company's independent registered public accounting firm, Ernst & Young LLP. have issued an attestation
report on management’s assessment of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. That attestation
report is set forth immediately following this report.
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BADGER METER, INC.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Badger Meter, Inc.

We have audited management's assessment, included in the accompanying Management's Annual Report on
Internal Control over Financial Reporting, that Badger Meter, Inc. (the “Company”) maintained effective internal
conirol over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in fnrernal Control —
ntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission {the
COSO criteria). Badger Meter. Inc. management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion,

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail.
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company: and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisitton, use. or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstalements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Badger Meter, Inc. maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the COSO criteria.
Also. in our opinion, Badger Meter, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated balance sheets of Badger Meter, Inc. as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the
related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31. 2006 and our report dated February 21, 2007, expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

fs/ Ernst & Young LLP

Milwaukee, Wisconsin
February 21, 2007
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BADGER METER, INC.
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Badger Meter, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Badger Meter, Inc. (the “Company™) as of
December 31. 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity and cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis.
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management. as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Badger Meter, Inc. at December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the consolidated
results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the pertod ended December 31, 2006, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles,

As discussed in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, on January 1, 2006, the Company changed its
method of accounting for share-based awards and on December 31, 2006, the Company changed its method of
accounting for defined benefit pension and postretirement healthcare plans,

We also have audited. in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the effectiveness of Badger Meter. Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2006. based on criteria established in Juzernai Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 21, 2007 expressed an
unqualified opinion thereon.

fs/ Ernst & Young LLP

Milwaukee, Wisconsin
February 21, 2007




BADGER METER, INC.

Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31,
2006 2005

(Dollars in thousands
except share and per
share amounts)

Assets
Current assets:
0 $ 3002 § 3215
Receivables. . ... .. . 29.276 27,060
Inventories:
Finished goods. . .. ... ... . . e 9.122 7.254
ORI PrOCESS L o o et e e e e e 10,302 9048
Raw materials . .. ... e 13,866 11,047
Total inventories . . . .. ... ... 33,290 27,349
Prepaid expenses and other current assets . . .. ... ... .ot e 3179 2,182
Deterred iNCOME 1AXES . . .. ot ittt e e e e e 3,737 3432
Asscts of discontinued operations (Note 3) .. .. ... oot 6,875 9,326
TOtal CUTTENML A8SCES « .« o ottt e et e e e 79,359 72,564
Property. plant and equipment, at cost:
Land and improvements . . .. .. e e 6,337 6,922
Buildings and improvements .. .. ... ... L 27.695 24,115
Machinery and equipment. .. .. .. 79,217 73.807
113,249 104.844
Less accumulated deprecialion ... ... ... . (68.540) (64,507)
Net property, plant and equipment . ... ..ot e 44,709 40,337
Intangihle assets, at cost less accumulated amortization . .. ... ... ... 636 659
Prepaid pension. . . ... . e — 17,726
OIher AS3ELS . . . . e e 4,211 3,998
Deferred tax assel . . . ... ... L e 3,510 —
Assets of discontinued operations (NOWe 3} . . . ... .. — 4,003
Goodwill .. 6,958 6,580
TOtal A8881S . . e e e $139383  $145,867
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Current liabilities:
Short-termdebt . . .. L $ 15093 §$ 5897
Current portion of long-term debt . .. .. ... .. .. . ... . 1,944 7.431
Payables . o 10,597 9,833
Accrued compensation and employee benefits . ... . ... L L L L 6,181 5,962
Warranty and after-sale COSIS. . . .. . ... 2,954 3.047
Income and OLREr 1aXES. . . . . ..t e e e e 621 1,651
Liabilities of discontinued operations (Note 3). ... ... ... ... ... .. i 8.321 5.820
Total current Habiltes .. o oot e 45,711 39.641
Other long-term liabilities . . ... ... 557 634
Delerred iMCOme [aXES . .. oottt e et e e e 199 6.584
Accrued non-pension postretirement benefits ... .. ... L. L e 6,903 3,955
Other accrued employee benefits. .. .. ... .. L 8,266 6.277
Long-term debl. . .. oL e 5,928 15.360
Commitments and contingencies (Note 6)
Sharcholders’ equity:
Common Stock, $1 par; authorized 40,000,000 shares; issued 20,553,468 shares in 2006 and
200111344 shares in 2005 . . . L oo e e 20,553 20,112
Capital inexcessof par value .. ... ... ... ... 19.428 13,320
Reinvested eamings .. . . .. .. e 77479 74.258
Accumulated other comprehensive income (10SSY. . .. .. .. .. L. (12,041} 1
Less: Employee benefit and restricted stock . .. ... ... ..., (744} (1.357)
Treasury stock, at cost; 6,399,360 shares in 2006 and 6,415,046 shares in 2005 .. ... ... (32,856) (32,918)
Total sharcholders® equity . . ... ... ... e 71,819 73416
Total liabilities and shareholders” equity. . .. .. ... .. ... . . .. ... $139.383  §145,867

See accompanying notes.
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BADGER METER, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Operations

Years ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
(In thousands except per share amounts)
Netsales . ... .. .. . $229,754  $203.637 $188.663
Costofsales........ ... ... ... ... ... . ... .. .. . ... 153,126 130,218 123,591
Grossmargin .. ... o 76,628 73,419 65,072
Selling, engineering and administration . . ... ... ... ... . ... 47.840 46,263 43,471
Operating eamnings . . ................... .. ... ... .. . 28,788 27,156 21,601
Interestexpense . ....... ... ... .. ... ... . ... . . ... ... .. 1,299 1,492 1.276
Earnings from continuing operations before income taxes ... ... ... . 27,489 25.664 20,325
Provision for income taxes (Note 8) ........... ... .. . ... .. 10,921 9.500 8.269
Earnings from continuing operations . ... ..... ... ... .. . ... . 16,568 16,164 12,056
Loss from discontinued operations (Note K ) (9,020) (2,911 (2,423)
Netearnings............... ... .. . .. ... ... ... ... ... $ 7548 $13253 § 9633
Earnings per share:
Basic:
from continuing operations ..... ... ... .. .. . ... .. . .. $ 119 $ 120 $ 091
from discontinued operations . ... ... ... ... ... . ... .. . $ (065 $ (022) $ (0.18)
Towlbasic ... . $ 054 $ 098 $ 073
Diluted:
from continuing operations ....... ... ... ... ... . . ... . . $ LIS $ 115 $ 089
from discontinued operations . . .. ... .. ... . ... ... . . . .. . . $_(063) $ (0200 $ (0.18)
Totaldiluted. .. ... ..o o $ 052 § 095 $ 071
Shares used in computation of earnings per share:
Basic .. .. .. 13,868 13,489 13,194
Impact of stock-based compensation . . ........ .. .. .. . . 521 533 420
Diluted . . ... o 14,389 14,022 13,614

See accompanying notes.
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BADGER METER, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended December 31,

2006 2005

2004

(Dolars in thousands)

Operating activities:

Netearnings ... ... . i e $ 7,548 13253 $ 9,633
Adjustments o reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by operations:
Deprecialion . . ... .. e e 6,589 6.164 7,070
AMOItIZAtION . . . .. L e 418 195 148
Tax benefit on stock options .. . ... ... ... ... L Lo ., — 1,370 877
Deferred income 1aXes . . . o oo vttt e e e (2,081) (318) 1,518
Long-lived asset impairment . ......... . ... ..., 1,369 — —
Noncurrent employee benefits .. .......... ... .. .. ... 4,147 3,025 2,182
Contributions to pension plan. .. . ...... .. ... ... Lo ... — (2,000} (2.000)
Changes in:
Receivables . ... ... .. .. e 1.373 {4,335) (170)
Inventories. . . ... e (1,531) 2,691 (5.345)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets . . ................... 302 (343) (788)
Current liabilities otherthan debt . . ... ..., . ... ... ... ........ {1,384) (1,341) (6,828)
Total adjustments .. ... ... L 9,202 5,108 (3,336)
Net cash provided by operations . ... ....... .. ... ... . .. ... 16,750 18.361 6,297
[nvesting activities:
Property, plant and equipment . ... ....... ... ... Lo o, (11,0600 (9,088) (5,582)
Other — nELl . . o e e e (516) (271) (733)
Net cash used for investing activities . .. ........................... (11,576) (9,359) (6,315)
Financing activities:
Net increase (decrease) in short-termdebt .. ...................... 8.971 (8,230} 13,566
Issuance of long-term debt. . ... ... ... ... . ... — 10,000 —
Repayments of long-termdebt. . ....... ... ... ... ... .. .. (14919  (7.376)  (9,679)
Dividends paid . ..., ... ... . . .. . .. (4,327)  (3,923) (3,633)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options. . ... ..................... 3,057 2,434 1,949
Tax benefit on stock options .. ... ... ... .. . .. .. 2,935 — —
Treasury stock purchases . . ... ... ... ... ... . i — (3,323) (1.711)
Issuance of treasury stock . ... .. ... ... 579 1,286 816
Net cash provided by (used for) financing activities .. ................. (3,704)  (9.132) 1,308
Effect of foreign exchange ratesoncash . .......................... (825) 1.699 {545)
Increase incash . ... . .. i e 645 1,569 745
Cash —beginning of year . ... ... ... . .. .. . . 4,403 2,834 2,089
Cash—endof year ¥ . . . ... ... .. . . . .. . . $ 5048 5 4403 3 2,834
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for:
Income taxes . . ... .. ... $10846 3 6919 § 7,767
Interest (including $232 of interest capitalized during facility
construction in 2000) . . .. ... ..o e $ 1,609 § 2269 § 1,629

* Includes $2,046, $1,188 and $1,397 of cash included in the assets of discontinued operations.

See accompanying notes.
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Years ended December 31,

Other Employee
compre- benefit
Capital in hensive and
Common excess of Reinvested incomne restricted Treasury
stock par value earnings {loss) stock stock Total
(In thousands except per share amounts)
Balance. December 31, 2003. ... ... ... .. $19.384  § 5541 358928  $ 1,280  $(1,285) $28,677) $ 55171
Comprehensive income:
Netearmings ... ........ ... ... . .. 9.633 9,633
Other comprehensive income:
Minimum employee benefit liability (net
of $6uxeffect) . ........... ... 27 27
Foreign currency ranstation. . . .. . ... 717 717
Comprehensive income . ... ... ... ... .. 10.377
Cash dividends of $0.28 pershare . .. ... ., (3.633) (3.633)
Stock options exercised .. ... ... ... .., 360 1.589 1,949
Tax benefit on stock options and dividends . 877 877
ESSOP transactions. .. ... ..., .. . .. . 220 220
Treasury stock purchases . ... .. ... ... .. (1,711) (1,711)
[ssuance of treasury stock. ... ... ... . ... 434 382 816
Balance, December 31,2004, ... ... .. . 19,744 8,441 64,928 2,024 (1,065)  (30,006) 64,066
Comprehensive income:
Netearnings.......... ... ... .. .. 13,253 13,253
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Minimum employee benefit liability (net
of $13tax effec) .. ...... .. .. .. l 1
Foreign currency translation . . . . .. . .. (2.024) (2,024)
Comprehensive income ... ... ... ... ... 11,230
Cash dividends of $0.29 per share . .. ... .. (3,923) (3923
Stock options exercised ... ... ... ... 336 2,098 2,434
Tax benefit on stock options and dividends . . 1.370 1,370
ESSOP wmansactions . ., . ... ..., ... ... 150 150
Restricted stock transactions . . .. ... ... .. 32 536 {442y 126
Treasury stock purchases . . .. .. ... . .. .. (3,323) (3,323
Issuance of treasury stock. .. .. .. .. ... .. 875 411 1,286
Balance, December 31,2005, .., ... ... 20,112 13,320 74,258 | (1L357)  (32918) 73,416
Comprehensive income (loss):
Netearnings . ...... ..., ... ... . .. 7,548 7,548
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Minimum empioyee benefit liability {net
of $6.525 tax effecty .. ... ... . ... (10,548) (10,548)
Foreign currency translation . . .. . . 1,183 1,183
Comprehensive loss. .. ... ... ... . . .. (1,817
[mpact of adoption of SFAS 158 (net of
$1.658 wxeffect). . ............. .. (2.677) (2.677)
Cash dividends of $.31 per share . .. . . .. .. (4.327) 4.327)
Stock options exercised ... ... ... ... .. 393 2,664 3.057
Tax benefit on stock options and dividends . | 2,935 2935
ESSOP wransactions. ... ......... ... .. 171 171
Restricted stock transactions . . ... ... .. .. 48 434 482
Impact of adoption of SFAS 123(R). . ... .. (442) 442 —
Issuance of treasury stock. ., . ... . ... . .. 517 62 579
Balance. December 31, 2006. . ... ... .. .. $20,553  $19.428 $77479  $(12.041)  $ (744) $(32.856) % 71.819

See accompanying notes.
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Profile

The Company is a leading marketer and manufacturer of products using flow measurement and control
technologies developed both internally and with other technology companies. Its products are used to measure and
control the flow of liquids in a variety of applications. The Company’s product lines fall into two general categories,
utility and industrial. The utility category is comprised of two preduct lines, residential and commercial water
meters (with various automatic meter reading (AMR) technology systems), which are generally sold to water
utilities and constitute a majority of the Company’s sales. Industrial product line sales comprise the remainder of the
Company’s sales and include automotive fluid meters, small precision valves, electromagnetic meters, impeller
flow meters and industrial process meters (all with related accessories and instrumentation),

Consolidation

The ceonsolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries.

Receivables

Receivables consist primarily of trade receivables. The Company does not require collateral and evaluates the
collectibility of its receivables based on a number of factors. An allowance for doubtful accounts is recorded for
significant past due receivable balances based on a review of the past due items, as well as applying a historical
write-off ratio to the remaining balances. Changes in the Company’s allowance for doubtful accounts are as follows:

Provision

Balance at and reserve Write-offs Balance at
beginning of year adjustments less recoveries end of year

(In thousands)

2006 .. $622 $ (78) $ () $542
2005 . $767 $ 35 $(180) $622
2004 L $949 $(104) $ (78) $767

Inventories

Inventories are valued primarily at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out
method. Market is determined based on the net realizable value. The Company estimates and records provisions for
obsolete inventories. Changes to the Company’s obsolete inventories reserve are as follows:

Net additions

Balance at charged Balance at
beginning of year to earnings Disposals end of year
(In thousands)
2006 .« oo $1,140 $ 802 $(615)  $1,327
2005 . . e e e $1,414 3 484 $(758) $1,140
2004 . .o $1,040 $1,187 $(813)  $1414

Properry, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives of the
respective assets, principally by the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives of assets are: for land
improvements, 15 years; for buildings and improvements, 10-39 years; and for machinery and equipment,
3-20 years.
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Long-Lived Assets

Property. plant and equipment and identifiable intangible assets are reviewed for impairment, in accordance
with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statement No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable, If the sum of the expected undiscounted cash flows is less than the carrying value of the
related asset or group of assets, a loss is recognized for the difference between the fair value and carrying value of
the asset or group of assets. See Note 3 for a discussion of the impairment loss recognized during 2006.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives ranging from 5.5 to
10 years. The Company does not have any intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives. Amortization expense
expected 1o be recognized is $158.000 in 2007, $104,000 each in 2008 and 2009, $83,000 in 2010, and $80,000 in
2011. The carrying value and accumulated amortization by major ctass of intangible assets are as follows:

December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005
Gross carrying  Accumulated  Gross carrying Accumulated
amount amortization amount amortization
{In thousands)

Technologies. . . ............. .. ... .. ..... $ 572 $447 $ 572 $373
Noncompete covenants . ... ................ — — 100 83
Licenses .. ... .. e 700 269 467 119
Trademarks . .. ... 150 _ 70 __ 150 _ 55
Total intangibles . ........ ... ............ $1,422 §786 $1.289 $630

Goodwill

During 2006 and 2003, the Company tested its recorded goodwill for impairment in accordance with FASB
Statement No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” and no adjustments were recorded to goodwill as a
result of those reviews, The amount of goodwill recorded at December 31, 2006 and 2005 was $7.0 million and
$6.6 million, respectively. The increase was due to translation adjustments for goodwill denominated in foreign
currencies.

Revenue Recognition

Revenues are generally recognized upon shipment of product, which corresponds with the transfer of title. The
costs of shipping are billed to the customer upon shipment and are included in cost of sales. A small portion of the
Company s sales includes shipments of products combined with services, such as meters sold with instaltation. The
preduct and installation components of these multiple deliverable arrangements are considered separate units of
accounting. The value of these separate units of accounting is determined based on their relative fair values
determined on a stand-alone basis. Revenue is recognized when the last element is delivered, which generally
corresponds with installation. The Company also sells extended service and warranty agreements on certain
products for the period subsequent to the normal warranty provided with the original product sale. Revenue is
recognized over the service agreement period, which is generally one year.

Warranty and After-Sale Costs

The Company estimates and records provisions for warranties and other after-sale costs in the period in which
the sale is recorded. After-sale costs represent a variety of activities outside of the written warranty policy, such as
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investigation of unanticipated problems after the customer has installed the product, or analysis of water quality
issues. Changes in the Company’s warranty and after-sale costs reserve are as follows:

Balance at Net additions Balance at
beginning of year  charged to earnings Costs incurred  end of yvear

(In thousands)

2006 ... $3,047 $1,341 $(1.434) $2,954
2005 ... ... T $3,208 SL116 $(1.277) $3,047
2004 ... $3.,426 $1,373 $(1.591) $3,208

Research and Development

Research and development costs are charged to expense as incurred and amounted to $3.5 million, $5.3 million
and $4.6 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Stock-Based Compensation Plans

At December 31, 2006, the Company has two types of stock-based employee compensation plans as described
below and in Note 3, “Stock Option Plans.”

The Company recognizes the cost of stock-based awards for all of its stock-based compensation plans on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period of the awards. Total stock compensation expense recognized by the
Company for 2006 was $1,031,000 compared to $268,000 for 2005.

A, Stock Options

The Company has six stock option plans which provide for the issuance of options to key employees and
directors of the Company. Each plan authorizes the issuance of options to purchase up to an aggregate of
800,000 shares of Common Stock, with vesting periods of up to ten years and maximum option terms of ten years.
As of December 31, 2006, options to purchase 551,376 shares remain available for grant under three of these pians.

Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company accounted for stock compensation plans under the recognition and
measurement provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 (APB 23), “Accounting for Stock Issued
to Employees,” and retated Interpretations, as permitted by FASB Statement No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation” (SFAS 123). No stock-based employee compensation cost was recognized for stock option awards
in the Consolidated Statements of Operations for the periods prior to January 1, 2006 as all options granted under
those plans had an exercise price equal to the markel value of the underlying Common Stock on the date of grant.

Etfective January |, 2006, the Company adopted the fair value recognition provisions of FASB Statement
No. 123(R). “Share-Based Payment” (SFAS [23(R)), using the modified-prospective-transition method. Under this
transition method, compensation cost recognized in 2006 includes compensation costs for all share-based payments
granted prior to, but not yet vested as of January 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance
with the original provisions of SFAS 123 and compensation cost for all share-based payments granted subsequent to
January 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 123(R). The
Company estimated the fair value of its eption awards granted prior to January 1, 2006 using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing formula, and continues to use this model. The Company records compensation expense for stock
options ratably over the stock option plans’ vesting period. Results for prior periods have not been restated.

As aresult of adopting SFAS 123(R) on January 1, 2006, the Company’s earnings before income taxes and net
earnings for 2006 were $298,000 and $180,000 lower, respectively.
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Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123(R), the Company presented all tax benefits of deductions resulting from the
exercise of stock options as operating cash flows in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. SFAS 123(R)
requires the cash flows resulting from the tax benefits of the tax deductions in excess of the compensation cost
recognized for those options (excess tax benefits) to be classified as financing cash flows.

The following table illustrates the effects on net earnings and earnings per share if the Company had applied
the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123 to stock option plans during the years ended December 31, 2005
and 2004. These pro forma calculations only include the effects of stock-based compensation granted since
January 1, 1995, The value of the optiens (net of forfeitures) is amortized to expense on a straight-line basis over
their vesting periods.

2005 2004

(In thousands except
per share data)

Net earnings, asreported . .. ................. ... .. ... ... ... .. .. ... $13,253  $9,633
Deduct: Incremental stock-based compensation determined under fair value based method
for all awards since January 1, 1995, net of related tax effects ................ (294) (326)

Proforma metearnings .............. ... . . .. . . $12,959  $9,307

Eamnings per share:
Basicasreported . ... ..o oL o $ 098 3073

Basic, proforma . ... oL oo $ 09 $ 071

................................................... $ 095 s o071

Diluted, pro forma. ... o o $ 092 % 068

The following table summarizes the stock option transactions for the years ended December 31:

2006 2005

Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise exercise

Options price Options price

(In thousands except per share amounts)
Options outstanding at January 1........ .. ... .. .. .. .. . .. 1,290 $ 7.35 1,617 $ 7.01
Options granted . ................... ... ... ... ... . 28 $31.41 45 $19.18
Options exercised . .................... .. ......... (396) §$ 6.89 (335) $ 7.25
Options forfeited/cancelled ... ... ... ... .. . .. . .. (5 § 859 37 % 789
Options outstanding at December 31 ... ... ... . .. .. . . . .. 917 $ 827 1,290 $ 735
Exercisable at December 31 .. .. ... ... ... . ... ... . . .. 607 $ 712 750 $ 7.05

The following assumptions were used for options granted in the years ended December 31:

_ 2006 2005
Per share fair value of options granted during the period .. ........ . ... ... . ... .. .. $11.62  $i2.07
Risk-free interestrate ......... ... .. ... .. .. .. .. 5% 4%
Dividendyield ......... ... ... .. . . . . .. . . .. 96% 1.4%
Volatility factor . ... 34% 30%
Weighted-average expected life (inyears) .............. ... . . .. .. . .. 54 6.1
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The following table summarizes the aggregate intrinsic value related to options exercised, outstanding and
exercisable as of and for the years ended December 31:

2006 2005
(In thousands)
EXercised . ... ...t $ 8222 % 3,966
OUESEANAING . . . . o ot e e $17.926 $15,860
Exercisable . . .. e e e e e $12,485 $ 9.432
Stock options outstanding at December 31, 2006 are as follows {options in thousands):

Weighted Weighted

average average

contractual exercise

Price Range life Options price
B3 70 - 85,75 e 2.5 286 $ 5.67
B0 - 7. 13, e e 5.7 347 $ 7.4
750 - B34 e 4.4 284 $12.41
Options outstanding . .. . ... ... . . e 4.6 917 $ 8.27
Options exercisable . ... ... ... .. . . e 37 607 $ 712

As of December 31, 2006, the unrecognized compensation cost related to stock options is approximately
$553,000, which will be recognized over a weighted average period of 2.5 years,

B. Nonvested Stock

Director Stock Grant Plan: Non-employee directors receive an annual award of 1,200 shares of Common Stock
under the sharehelder-approved 2002 Director Stock Grant Plan. The Company records compensation expense for
this plan ratably over the annual service period beginning May 1. Director stock compensation expense recognized
by the Company for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $214,000 compared to $141,000 of compensation
expense recognized for the same period in 2005. As of December 31, 2006, the unrecognized compensation cost
related to the nonvested director stock award that is expected to be recognized over the remaining four months is
estimated to be approximately $66,000.

Restricted Stock: On April 29, 2005, a restricted stock plan was approved which provides for the issuance of
nonvested Common Stock to certain eligible employees. The Company records compensation expense for this plan
ratably over the vesting period. The plan authorizes the issuance of up to an aggregate of 100,000 shares of Common
Stock, of which 31,000 shares were issved in 2005 and 48,000 were issued in 2006. Nonvested stock awards have a
three-year cliff vesting period contingent on employment. Nonvested stock compensation expense recognized by
the Company for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $519.000 compared to $126,000 for the same period in
2005.
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The fair value of nonvested shares is determined based on the market price of the Company’s shares on the
grant date.

Fair value
Shares per share

(In thousands except
per share amounts)

Nonvested at January | ... ... . 0 o 31 $18.33
Granted .. ... 48 $31.41
Vested. ..o ) $18.33
Nonvested at December 31.2006 . . .. ........ ... ... ... .. . ... .. . . 78 $26.40

As of December 31, 2006, there was $1.4 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested
restricted stock that is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 2.1 years.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Components of accumutated other comprehensive incote (loss) at December 31 are as follows:

2006 2005
(In thousands)

Cumulative foreign currency translation adjustment ... L $ 1658 $475
Minimum pension liability ... ......... ... ... ... .. .. . ... — (474)
Unrecognized pension and postretirement benefit plan liabilities . ... .. ... .. . . . . . (13,699) —
Accumulated other comprehensive income (oss) ... $(12,041) $ 1

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial
statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made (o the 2005 and 2004 consolidated financial statements and Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements 1o conform to the 2006 presentation.

New Accounting Pronouncements

tn June 2006. the FASB issued Financial Interpretation No. (FIN) 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes,” which clarifies the accounting for uncertuinty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial
statements in accordance with SFAS 109, “Accounting for Income Tuaxes.” The interpretation prescribes a
recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a
tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return, The Company is required to adopt FIN 48 beginning in
fiscal year 2007 and the impact that the adoption of FIN 48 will have on its consolidated financial statements and
notes thereto is not expected to be significant.

In September 2006. the FASB issued Statement No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension
and Other Postretirement Plans, an amendment of FASB Statemems No. 87, 88, 106 and I32(R)” (SFAS 158).
SFAS 158 requires employers thai sponsor defined benefit pension and postretirement benefit plans to recognize
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previously unrecognized actuarial losses and prior service costs in the statement of financial position and to
recognize future changes in these amounts in the year in which changes occur through comprehensive income. As a
result, the statement of financial position will reflect the funded status of those plans as an asset or liability.
Additionally, employers are required to measure the funded status of a plan as of the date of its year-end statement of
financial position and provide additional disclosures. On December 31, 2006, the Company adopted the provisions
of SFAS 158 by recognizing the funded status of its defined benefit pension and postretirement benefit plans in the
statement of financial position based on the September 30, 2006 measurement date. SFAS 158 did not have an effect
on the Company’s consolidated financial condition at December 31, 2005 and 2004. See Note 7 for further
discussion and disclosures of the effect of adopting SFAS 158 on the Company’s consolidated financial statements
and notes thereto. In addition, the Company will be required to measure the plan assets and benefit obligations as of
the date of the year-end statement of financial position by December 31, 2008. The Company is currently evaluating
the impact the change in the measurement date will have on its consolidated financial statements and notes thereto.

Note 2 Common Stock

On April 28, 2006, the Board of Directors declared a 2-for-1 stock split on the Company’s Common Stock
effected in the form of a 100% stock dividend, payable on June 15, 2006 to shareholders of record at the close of
business on June 1, 2006. In this report, all the per share amounts and numbers of shares have been restated to reflect
this stock split. In addition, Common Stock and capital in excess of par value have been adjusted to reflect this split
for all periods presented.

The Company has Common Stock, and also a Common Shares Rights Agreement, which grants certain rights
1o existing holders of Common Stock. Subject 1o certain conditions, the rights are redeemable by the Company and
are exchangeable for shares of Common Stock at a favorable price. The rights have no voting power and expire on
May 20, 2008.

Common Stock shares that could potentially dilute basic earnings per share in the future totaled 36,200 and
8,000 in 2006 and 2005, respectively. Such amounts represent stock options whose exercise price was greater than
the average stock price for the respective periods.

Note 3  Discontinued Operations

During 2006, the Company carefully evaluated strategic alternatives for its subsidiaries in Nancy. France,
including restructuring, sale or shutdown. In the third quarter of 2006, the Company began the process under French
law to obtain the approvals to close the operation. On October 16, 2006, the decision was finalized. The Company
continues to believe that this decision will result in total after-tax charges ranging from $6.0 million to $8.0 million.
In 2006, $5.4 million of charges net of the income tax benefit were recognized, with the remainder to be recognized
in 2007 as assets are liquidated and liabilities are settled.

The charges recognized in 2006 net of income taxes included increased reserves for receivables and inventories
totaling $2.0 million, recording an impairment of long-lived assets of $1.4 million, recognizing liabilities for
severance costs of $1.1 million, contract termination costs of $0.4 million, and $0.5 miilion of shutdown costs
incurred in 2006. The long-lived asset group includes the intangible assets and fixed assets of the French operations.
As a result of the continued operating losses, the shutdown of the French subsidiaries, and the evaluation that the
carrying amount of the long-lived asset group exceeded the expected undiscounted future cash flows, an impairment
charge of $1.4 million was recognized for the difference between the carrying value of the asset group and the fair
value, based on an appraisal.

In accordance with the provisions of SFAS 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets,” the results of operations of the Company’s French subsidiaries have been reported as discontinued
operations for all periods presented. Revenues from the Company’s French subsidiaries for the years ended
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December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 were $11.2 million, $13.0 million and $16.3 million, respectively. Losses
before income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 were $10.7 miltion, $2.9 million and
$2.3 million, respectively.

The components of the assets and liabilities of discontinued operations included in the Consolidated Batance
Sheets are as follows:

December 31,
2006 2005
(In thousands)

Assets of discontinued operations:

Cash ..o $2,046 5 1,188
Receivables............. ... .o 1,201 3,390
Ioventories ......... . L 827 4,621
Prepaid expenses and other current assets. ................... . ... .. . 181 127
Net property, plant and equipment ... oo oo 2,375 3.533
Intangible assets, at cost less accumulated amortization. . ... ... ... ... .. 245 367
Otherassets. ... — 103
Total assets of discontinued operations. .. ..............._ .. .. .. . . $6.875  $13,329
Liabilities of discontinued operations;
Short-termdebt . ... $3.275 % 2,950
Payables ... 2,356 1,651
Accrued compensation and employee benefits ......... . ... . .. .. . . .. . 1,927 529
Warranty and after-sale costs ... ............. ... .. ... ... 567 563
Income and other taxes ................... 196 127
Total liabilities of discontinued OPErations . ............... ... ... .. ... .. ... $8.321  $ 5,820

Note 4  Short-term Debt and Credit Lines

Short-term debt at December 31, 2006 and 2005 consisted of:

2006 2005

{In thousands)
Notes payable tobanks ................... .. ... .. $ 8393 $1.652
Commercial paper. ... 6,700 4,245
Total shortterm debt. . ... ... oo $15.093  $5.897

included in notes payable to banks for 2006 is $5.5 million borrowed under a 10 million euro-based {(U.S.
dollar equivalent of $13.1 million at December 31, 2006) revolving loan facility that bears interest at 5.28% and
expires in April 2007 and $2.9 million outstanding under revolving credit facilities which bear interest at 5.14%.

The Company has $38.0 million of short-term credit lines with domestic and foreign banks, which includes a
$25.0 million line of credit that can also support the issuance of commercial paper. At December 31, 2006,
$9.6 million was outstanding under these lines with a weighted-average interest rate on the outstanding balance of
5.39% and 4.23% at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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Note 5 Stock Option Plans

As discussed in Note 1 “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” under the heading “Stock-Based
Compensation Plans,” the Company has six stock option plans which provide for the issuance of options to key
employees and directors of the Company or for which issued options are still outstanding. Each plan authorizes the
issuance of options to purchase up to an aggregate of 800,000 shares of Common Stock, with vesting periods of up
to ten years and maximum option terms of ten years. As of December 31, 2006, options to purchase 551,376 shares
are available for grant under three of these plans.

The following table summarizes the transactions of the Company’s stock option plans for the three-year period
ended December 31, 2006:

Weighted-average

Nuomber of shares exercise price
Options outstanding —

December 31, 2003 . ..o e 1,935,244 $ 6.66
Options granted ... ... v it 50,800 $9.14
Options exercised. . .. ... ..ot e (359,612) $ 542
Options forfedted . ... ... ... . . e (9,440) $ 812
Options outstanding —

December 31, 2004 . . . e e 1,616,992 $ 7.0l
Options granted ... .. ..ottt e 45,200 $19.18
OPHONS EXETCISE. . . oottt e e e (335,476) $ 725
Options forfeited .. ... ... ... . i e (36,960) $ 7.89
Options outstanding —

December 31, 2005 . .. o e e 1,289,756 $ 7.35
Oplions granted .. .. ... ..t e 28,200 £31.41
Options exercised. . ... ... i e (395,564) $ 6.89
Options forfeited ......... ... . . . e {5,040) $ 8.59
Options outstanding —

December 31,2000 .. ... ... . e _ 917,352 $ 827
Price range $3.70 - $5.75

(weighted-average contractual life of 2.5 years) . .. .. ....... ... ... 286,052 $ 5.67
Price range $6.03 - $7.13

(weighted-average contractual life of 5.7 years). .. ................ 347,260 $ 7.04
Price range $7.50 — $31.42

{weighted-average contractual life of 44 years). .................. 284,040 $12.41
Exercisable options —

December 31, 2004 . . . e e e 908,878 $ 7.18

December 31,2005 . . ... ... e 750,324 $ 7.05

December 31, 2006 . . . .. e e 606,552 £ 7.12
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Note 6 Commitments and Contingencies
A.  Commitments

The Company leases equipment and facilities under non-cancelable operating leases, some of which contain
renewal options. Total future minimum lease payments consisted of the following at December 31. 2006:

Total leases
{In thousands)

007 3836
008 .o 85
009 28
Total lease obligations ... $949

Total rental expense charged to operations under all operating leases was $1.3 million, $1.3 million and
$1.2 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

The Company makes commitments in the normal course of business. At December 31, 2006, the Company had
various contractual obligations, including facility construction contracts. royalty commitments and operatin g leases
that totaled $1.6 million, of which $1.5 million is due in 2007 and the remainder due from 2008 through 2009.

B. Contingencies

In the normal course of business, the Company is named in legal proceedings. There are currently no material
legal proceedings pending with respect to the Company. The more significant legal proceedings are discussed
below.

The Company is subject to contingencies relative to environmental laws and regulations. Currently, the
Company is in the process of resolving environmental issues related to two lundfill sites. Provision has been made
for estimated settlement costs. which are not material,

The Company is a defendant in numerous multi-party asbestos lawsuits pending in various states. These
lawsuits assert claims alleging that certain industrial products were manufactured by the defendants and were the
cause of imjury and harm. The Company is vigorously defending itself against these alleged claims. Although it is
not possible to predict the ultimate outcome of these matters. the Company does not believe the ultimate reselution
of these issues will have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial position or results of operations, either
from a cash flow perspective or on the financial statements as a whole.

The Company has evaluated its worldwide operations to determine if any risks and uncertainties exist that
could severely impact its operations in the near term. The Company does not believe that there are any significant
near-term risks. However, the Company does rely on single suppliers for certain castings and components in several
of its product lines. Although alternate sources of supply exist for these items, loss of cerain suppliers could
temporarily disrupt operations in the short term. The Company attempts to mitigate these risks by working closely
with key suppliers, purchasing minimal amounts from alternative suppliers and by purchasing business interruption
insurance where appropriate.

The Company reevaluates its exposures on a periodic basis and makes adjustments to reserves as appropriate,
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Note 7 Employee Benefit Plans

The Company maintains a non-contributory defined benefit pension plan that covers substantially all
U.S. employees, and supplemental non-qualified pension plans for certain officers and other key employees.
Pension benefits are based primarily on years of service and. for certain plans, levels of compensation.

The Company also has certain postretirement healthcare benefit plans that provide medical benefits for certain
retirees and eligible dependents. Employees are eligible to receive postretirement healthcare benefits upon meeting
certain age and service requirements. These plans require employee contributions to offset benefit costs.

Adoption of SFAS 158

As discussed in Note 1, the Company adopted SFAS 158. as it relates to recognizing the funded status of its
defined benefit pension and postretirement benefit plans in its Consolidated Balance Sheets and related disclosure
provisions, on December 31, 2006. Funded status is defined as the difference between the projected benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. Upon adoption, the Company recorded an adjustment to accumulated
other comprehensive income (loss) representing the recognition of previously unrecorded pension and postretire-
ment healthcare liabilities related to net unrecognized actuarial losses. unrecognized prior service costs and
unrecognized prior service credits. These amounts will be subsequently recognized as a component of net periodic
pension cost pursuant to the Company’s historical accounting policy for recognizing such amounts.

The incremental effects of adopting the provisions of SFAS 158 on the Company’s Consolidated Balance
Sheets at December 31. 2006 are presented in the following table. The adoption of SFAS 158 had no effect on the
Company's Consolidated Statements of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2006, or for any prior period
presented, and it wil! not affect the Company's operating results in future periods. Had the Company not been
required to adopt SFAS 158 at December 31. 2006. it would have recognized an additional minimum pension
liability pursuant to the provisions of SFAS 87. “Employers Accounting for Pensions.” The effect of recognizing the
additional minimum pension liability is included in the table below in the column labeled “Prior 1o Adopting
SFAS 587

Al December 31, 2006

Prior (o Effect of
adopting adopting
SFAS 158 SFAS 138 As reported

(In thousands)

Other assets (pension intangible). .. ... .o ve i $4247 § (36 3 4211
Net deferred taxX QSSEL. . o oo v v vrnmn e me st $ 8706 §(1.658) 3 7.048
Accrued compensation and employee BemefilS . v o oe e e $(5.012y  $(1.169) $(6.181)
Other accrued employee benefits, ... ... oo vo oo $(7.990) $ (276) $(8.2006)
Accrued non-pension postretirement benefits. o oo e e $(4.049)  $(2.854) $(6,903)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss ... oo $ 9,364 $ 2,677 $12,041

Amounts included in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax, at December 31. 2006 which
have not yet been recognized in net periodic benefit cost are as follows (in thousands):

Other
postretirement
Pension plans benefits
PLOT SEEVICE COSLa « v v e e et e et im e $ 22 $ 797
Net actuaral LOSS. « o v v v coae o $11.447 $1,433
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Amounts included in accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax, at December 31, 2006 expected to be
recognized in net periodic benefit cost during the fiscal year ending December 31, 2007 are as follows (in
thousands);

Other
postretirement
Pension plans benefits
Priorservice credit ... . 0 $ (86) $(37)
Netactuarial loss.. ... o0 oo 51,102 369

A. Qualified Pension Plan

The Company maintains a non-contributory defined benefit pension plan for certain empioyees. The following
table sets forth the components of net periodic pension cost for the years ended December 3 1, 2006, 2005 and 2004
based on a September 30 measurement date:

2006 2005 2004
(In thousands)
Service cost — benefits earned during the year .. ... L, $1937 $187 %1626
Interest cost on projected benefit obligations. ... .. ... ... .. . . . . . .. 2,380 2,501 2,510
Expected retwrn on planassets . .......... ... ... .. (3.670) (3.640) (3,709)
Amortization of prior service cost. . ........... ... (112) (115) (136)
Amortization of net loss. . .......... ... . 1,273 990 656
Net periodic pension cost. ............... .. ... ... ... ... . . $ 1,808 $1.563 § 0947

Actuarial assumptions used in the determination of the net periodic pension cost were;

2006 2005 2004
Discountrate. ... .o 525%  525%  6.5%
Expected long-tern return on plan assets . ... ... ........ . ... . 85% 8.5% 8.5%
Rate of compensution increase. . ........... ... ... .. ... . . 5.0% 30%  5.0%
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The following table provides a reconciliation of benefit obligations, plan assets and funded status based on a

September 30 measurement date:
2006

2005

{In thousands)

Change in benefit obligation:

$43,089
1,827
2,501
841
2,607
{3.588)

347,277

$42.859
4,956
2,000
(3,588)

346,227

Benefit obligation at beginning of plan year . .. ... ...... .. .. .. ... . .. ... ... $47,277
SerVICE COSL. . . L. e e 1,937
Interest COSt. . . e 2,380
Plan amendments. . . .. . . 44
Actuarial (2ain) 0S5, . . . . e e e (1,190)
Benefits Paid . . . . ..ottt et (4,310)
Projected benefit obligation at September 30 . ... ... ... . L i $46,138
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of plan year .. ... . ... ... ... ... .. ... ... $46,227
Actual return on plan assels . . . .. .. ... 2,350
Company contribution . . . . ... .. —
Benefits paid . . . ... ... e (4,310)
Fair value of plan assets at September 30, .. ... ... ... ... .. . . $44.267
Reconciliation:
Funded status at September 30 . . .. .. ... ... ... ... $(1,871)

Unrecognized prior SEIVICE COSL . .. . ..ottt et —
Unrecognized net actuarial loss . ... .. ... ... ... . —

$(1,050)
(128)
18,904

Prepaid (accrued) pension asset (liability) at September 30 and December 31 .. .. ... .. $(1,871)

$17,726

Actuarial assumptions used in the determination of the benefit obligation of the above data were:

2006
DISCOUNE FALE . . . . ottt it e e 5.75%
Rate of compensation InCrease . ... ... ... .. e 5.0%

The fair value of the pension plan assets was $46.! million at December 31, 2006 and $46.5 million at
December 31, 2005. The variation in the fair value of the assets between September and December of each year is
primarily from the change in the market value of the underlying investments. Estimated future benefit payments
expected to be paid in each of the next five years beginning with 2007 are $4.0 million, $3.9 million, $4.2 million,
$3.9 miltion and $4.1 million with an aggregate of $22.4 million for the five years thereafter. The Company does not
expect to contribute funds to its pension plan in 2007.

2005

5.25%
5.0%
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The Company employs a total return investment approach whereby a mix of equities and fixed income
investments are used to maximize the long-term return of plan assets for a prudent level of risk. Risk tolerance is
estublished through careful consideration of short- and long-term plan liabilities. plan funded status and corporate
financial condition. The investment portfolio contains a diversified blend of equity and fixed-income investments.
Furthermore, equity investments are diversified across various stocks, as well as growth, value, and small and large
capitalizations. Investment risk is measured and monitored on an ongoing basis through quarterly investment
portfolio reviews, annual liability measurements and periodic asset/liability studies. The Company’s pension plan
weighted-average asset allocations by asset category at December 31 are as follows:

2006 2005
Slocks. .o 60% 63%
Fixed income funds. ... 34 32
Cashand cashequivalents ... _6 5
Toal. .o 100% 100%

The pension plan has a separately determined accumulated benefit obligation that is the actuarial present value
of benefits based on service rendered and current and past compensation levels. This differs from the projected
benefit obligation in that it includes no assumption about future compensation levels. The accumulated benefit
obligation was $45.5 million and $46.2 million at September 30, 2006 and 2005. respectively,

B. Supplemental Non-qualified Unfunded Pensions

The Company also maintains supplementai non-qualified unfunded pension plans for certain officers and other
key employees. Pension expense for these plans was $372.000, $412.000 and $391.000 for years ended 2006, 2005
and 2004, respectively, and the amount accrued was $1.9 million and $2.1 million as of the end of 2006 and 2005.
Amounts were determined based on similar assumptions as the Qualified Pension Plan as of the September 30
measurement dates.

C. Other Postretirement Benefits

The Company has certain postretirement plans that provide medical benefits for certain retirees and eligible
dependents. The following table sets forth the components of net periodic postretirement benefit cost for the years
ended December 31. 2006. 2005 and 2004:

2006 2005 2004
(In thousands)

Service cost, benefits attributed for service of active employees for the period. . ., .. $224  $183 $ 167
Interest cost on the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation, . ... ... ... . ... 422 437 474
Amortization of prior service credit .. .......... ... .. (36) 173 (173)
Recognized net actwarial loss. .. ... ... . oo 0 155 181 155
Net periodic postretirement benefit cost . ... ........... ... .. ... 3765 $628 §623
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The discount rate used to measure the net periodic postretirement benefit cost was 5.25% for 2006, 6.0% for
2005 and 6.5% for 2004, It is the Company’s policy to fund health care benefits on a cash basis. Because the plans
are unfunded, there are no plan assets. The following table provides a reconciliation of the benefit obligation at the
Company’s December 31 measurement date.

2006 2005
{In thousands}

Change in benefit obligation:

Benefit obligation at beginning of year .. ....... ... ... ... .. ... . ., $9744  § 7,037
S IVICE COSE . v vt e e e e 224 183
INIETESE COSL . . . o ittt e ettt ettt e e e e e e e 422 437
AMENAMENTS . . . o oottt e e e e e e (241) 1,505
Actuarial (gain) 10SS . . . .. . e e e (1,819) 1,745
Plan participants contributions . .. ... ... ... .. ot 401 347
Benefits paid . ... ... e (1,072  (1,510)
Projected benefit obligation and unfunded status at December 31.. ... .. ... ... ..... 7,659 9.744
Unrecognized prior service credit .. ... ... ... .. . e — (1,495)
Unrecognized net actuarial loss . ... ... .. . . L e — {4,294)
Accrued non-pension postretirement benefit liability . ....... ... ... ... ... .. ... .. $76359 $3.955

The discount rate used to measure the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation was 5.75% for 2006 and
5.25% for 2005. Because the plan requires the Company to establish fixed Company contribution amounts for
retiree health care benefits, future health care cost trends do not generally impact the Company’s accruals or
provisions.

Estimated future benefit payments of postretirement benefits, assuming more cost sharing, expected to be paid
in each of the next five years beginning with 2007 are $0.8 million, $0.7 million, $0.6 million, $0.6 million and
$0.6 million with an aggregate of $3.0 million for the five years thereafter. These amounts can vary significantly
from year to year because the cost sharing estimates can vary from actual expenses as the Company is seif-insured.

D. Badger Meter Employee Savings and Stock Ownership Plan

The Badger Meter Employee Savings and Stock Ownership Plan (the “ESSOP”) has used proceeds from loans,
guaranteed by the Company, to purchase Common Stock of the Company from shares held in treasury. The
Company is obligated to contribute sufficient cash to the ESSOP to enable it to repay the loan principal and interest.
The principal amount of the foan was $744,000 as of December 31, 2006 and $915,000 as of December 31, 2005,
This principal amount has been recorded as long-term debt and 4 like amount of unearned compensation has been
recorded as a reduction of shareholders’ equity in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The Company made principal payments of $171,000, $150,000 and $220,000 in 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. The associated commitments released shares of Common Stock (23,342 in 2006 for the 2005
obligation, 29,176 in 2005 for the 2004 obligation, and 42,792 in 2004 for the 2003 obligation) for allocation to
participants in the ESSOP. The ESSOP held unreleased shares of 154,638, 177,980 and 207,156 as of December 31,
2006. 2005 and 2004, respectively, with a fair value of $4.3 million, $3.5 million and $3.1 million as of
December 31, 2006. 2005 and 2004, respectively. Unreleased shares are not considered outstanding for purposes
of computing earnings per share.
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The ESSOP includes a voluntary 401 (k) savings plan that allows certain employees to defer up to 20% of their
income on a pretax basis subject to limits on maximum amounts. The Company matches 25% of each employee’s
contribution, with the match percentage applying to a maximum of 7% of the employee’s salary. The match is paid
using Company stock released through the ESSOP loan payments. For ESSOP shares purchased prior to 1993,
compensation expense is recognized based on the original purchase price of the shares released and dividends on
unreleased shares are charged to retained earnings. For shares purchased after 1992, expense is based on the market
value of the shares on the date released and dividends on unreleased shares are accounted for as additional interest
expense. At December 31, 2006, the Company intends to use proceeds of $61,000 from the ESSOP to reduce the
existing loan in 2007. This commitment releases shares to satisfy the 401({k) match for 2006. Compensation expense
of $209,000, $221,000 and $225,000 was recognized for the match for 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Note 8 Income Taxes

The components of the net deferred taxes as of December 31 were as follows:

2006 2005
(In thousands)

Deferred tax assets:

Receivables. . ... .. $ 192 § 234
Inventories . . ... ... e e 947 748
Accrued COMPENSALION. . . . .ot e e e e 944 773
Payables - . . ... e 1,137 1,285
Non-pension postretitement benefits. .. ... ... ... ... . .. ... i 2,930 1,526
Accrued pension benefits. . .. ... .. 715 —
Accrued employee benefits . . ... L. e e 2,728 2,192
Net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards . ..... ... ... .. .. ... ... . ..., 232 259
Other .. . e 478 395
Total deferred tax assets. . ... ... ... ... . .. 10,303 7,412
Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation . . . ... ... e 3,255 3,723
Prepaid pension. . . ... ... e — 6,841
Total deferred tax liabilities . . ... ... . . .. e 3,255 10,564
Net deferred tax asset (liabilities) . . . .. ... ... . .. ... . . . . . . $ 7,048 $(3,152)

Income tax expense is included in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations as follows:

2006 2005 2004
{In thousands)
Income tax expense:
Continuing OPerations . ... .. ... c ettt et $£10,921  $9,500 $8,269
Discontinued operations . . . .. ... ... ... e s (1,655) 45 78
Total . ... e 39266 $9545 $8,347
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Details of earnings from continuing operations before income taxes and the related provision for income taxes
are as follows:

2006 2005 2004
(In thousands)
DIOMIESEIC « . o o ot e e e e e e e $26,804  $24.263 520,174
FOrBIgN . . .o e e e e 685 1,401 151
Total ..o e e $27.489 $25.664  $20,325
Provision for income taxes from continuing operations:
Current:
Federdl . ..o oo e e e $10,885 $ 8,100 % 5,187
lAE. . . it e e e 1,709 1,397 1,418
FOreign. . . e 256 281 181
Deferred:
Federal . . ... . . e (1,682) (199) 1,258
1Y 723 (302) (194) 245
200) =) - « O 55 115 20)
TOtal oot $10,921 $ 9500 $ 8,269

The provision for income tax differs from the amount that would be provided by applying the statutory
U.S. corporate income tax rate in each year due to the following items:

2006 2005 2004
(In thousands)
Provision at SIIILOTY TALE. . . . . . L\ vttt st i e n e $ 9,622 §8982 $7,114
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit .. ... ... .. .. ... ... .. .. 1,067 782 1,081
Foreign income taxes. . . ... .ottt et e e 71 49) 38
(10 71 1 7=) o 161 (215) 36
Actual Provision ... ... e $10,921  $9,500  $8,269

At December 31, 2006, the Company had foreign net operating loss carryforwards at certain European
subsidiaries totaling $0.7 million. The German carryforward has an unlimited carryforward period, however, the net
operating loss may only offset up to $ | million euros of taxable income each year. The Slovakian carry forward hasa
five-year carryforward period and will begin to expire in 2010.

No provision for federal income taxes was made on the earnings of foreign subsidiaries that are considered
permanently invested or that would be offset by foreign tax credits upon distribution. Such undistributed earnings at
December 31, 2006 were $2.7 million.

Tax Contingencies

The Company is subject to income taxes in the United States and numerous foreign jurisdictions. Significant
judgment is required in determining the worldwide provision for income taxes and recording the related deferred tax
assets and liabilities. Accruals for tax contingencies are provided for in accordance with the requirements of SFAS 5,
“Accounting for Contingencies.”
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As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company has recorded reserves for uncertain tax positions of
$6.3 million and $0.2 million, respectively. The increase in the reserve for uncertain tax positions was due to
uncertainty regarding the sustainability of certain deductions to be taken on the 2006 Federal tax return related to
the shutdown of the Company's French subsidiaries. The Company believes that it has appropriate support for the
incorme tax positions taken and to be taken on its tax returns and that its accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all
open years based on an assessment of many factors including past experience and interpretations of tax law applied
to the facts of each matter.

Note 9 Long Term Debt and Fair Value of F inancial Instruments

Long-term debt consists of the following:

2006 2005
(In thousands)
ESSOPdebt (Note 7D) ..o $ 744§ 915
Termloans. ..o 7,128 21,876
Totaldebt ..o 7.872 22,791
Less: cumrent maturities ... ..o {1,944) (7,431)
Long-term debt ... $5928  $15,360

Interest on the ESSOP debt may be charged at either prime rate or at LIBOR plus 1.5%. As of December 31,
2006. the LIBOR-based loan had an interest rate of 0.87%. The terms of the loan aliow variable payments of
principal with the final principal and interest payment due April 30, 2008. The interest expense on the ESSOP debt
was $20,000, $21.000 and $23.000, which was net of dividends on unallocated ESSOP shares of $28,000, $30.000
and $34,000 for 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Included in term loans for 2005 was $7.3 million borrowed under a 10 million euro-based (U.S. dollar
equivalent of $11.8 million at December 3 1, 2005) revolving loan tacility that bears interest at 3.79% and EXpires in
April 2007. In 2006, borrowings under this euro-based revolving loan facility were classified as short-term debt on
the Consolidated Balance Sheets due to the facility expiring in April 2007, See Note 4, “*Short-term Debt and Credit
Lines™ for further discussion.

In May 2005, the Company obtained a long-term, unsecured loan to replace existing short-term debt. The
Company secured a $10 miltion, five-year term loan that bears interest at 5.59% with remaining annual principal
payments for the subsequent four years of $1.9 million, $2.1 million, $2.2 million and $0.9 miilion.

Cash, receivables and payables are reflected in the financial statements at fair value. Shori-term debt is
comprised of notes payable drawn against the Company’s lines of credit and commercial paper. Because of the
short-term nature of these instruments, the carrying value approximates the fair value. The $5.5 million of short-
term debt outstanding under the euro-based revolving loan facility was renewed at December 31. 2006 at current
interest rates and therefore carrying value approximates fair market value. The five-year term loan with $7.1 million
outstanding has an estimated fair value of $7.0 million at December 31, 2006 based on quoted market rates.

The Company guarantees the debt of the Badger Meter Officers’ Voting Trust (“BMOVT"), from which the
BMOVT obtained loans from a bank on behaif of the officers of the Company in order to purchase shares of the
Company’s Common Stock. The officers’ loan amounts are secured by the Company's shares that were purchased
with the loans’ proceeds. There have been no loans made to officers by the BMOVT since July 2002. The Company
has guaranteed $0.5 million and $1.1 million of the BMOVT's debt at December 31. 2006 and December 31, 2003,
respectively. The current loan matures in April 2007, at which time it is expected to be renewed. The fair market
value of this guarantee at December 31, 2006 continues to be insignificant because the secured value of the shares
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exceeds the loan amount, It is the Company’s intention to eliminate the BMOVT by December 31, 2010, because it

no longer fulfills its original purpose of providing officers with loans to purchase Common Stock.

Note 10 Industry Segment and Geographic Areas

The Company is a marketer and manufacturer of flow measurement and control instruments, which comprise
one reportable segment. The Company manages and evaluates its operations as one segment primarily due to
similarities in the nature of the products, production processes, customers and methods of distribution.

Information regarding revenues by geographic area is as follows:

2006 2005 2004
(In thousands)
Revenues:
United States ... ... . e e $208,579  $185015 $170.878
Foreign:
Europe . e $ 9979 $ 8,196 $ 9,061
MeEXICO . . . . e $ 4055 $ 4220 $ 4.228
Other . L $ 7,141 % 6206 $ 4,496
Information regarding assets by geographic area is as follows:
2006 2005

(In thousands)

Long-lived assets (all non-current assets except deferred tax asset):

United States . . ... oot e e $ 42,131
Foreign:
Europe . . ... e $ 7.827
MEXICO . . e $ 6,556
Total assets:
United States . . ... oo e $106,003
Foreign:
Burope . . e $ 17.509
MK L it e e $ 8996
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Note 11 Unaudited: Quarterly Results of Operations, Common Stock Price and Dividends

Quarter ended
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
(In thousands except per share data)

2006
Netsales ............. ... ... ......... .. $58,000  $58,841 $60,208 $52,705
Grossmargin . ........ ... ... ... .. .. .. . . . $21,048  $20,568 $17,889 $17,123
Earnings from continuing operations. . ... ... ... .. . . $ 5232 % 5058 $ 3945 $ 2,333
Loss from discontinued operations . . ... ... ....... . $(1,001)  $(1,009) $(4,464) $(2,546)
Net earnings (loss) . ............. ... .. .. ... .. $ 4231 $ 4049 $ (519 5 @213
Earnings (loss) per share:
Basic:
Continuing operations . . ... ...... ... . .. . .. . . . $ 038 $ 038 $ 028 $ 0.17
Discontinued operations . ......... .. ... ... . . $ 007 $ 007 $ (0,32) $ (0.19)
Total basic ......... . ... .. ... ... ... .. .. $ 031 % 029 5 (0.04) $ (0.02)
Diluted:
Continuing operations . .............. ... .. . . .. £ 037 $ 035 $ 028 ¥ 0.6
Discontinued operations .. ......... .. .. .. .. .. $ 007 % 00N $ (0.32) $ 017
Total diluted . ...... .. ... .. ... ... ... . .. $ 030 $ 028 $ 004 $ (0.0
Dividends declared . . ..... ... ... ... . . .. . . . . . $ 0075 $0.075 $ 0.080 $ 0.080
Stock price:
High. ..o $2993 §$ 3320 $ 2745 $ 2950
Low .. ... .. 3 19.51 $ 21.60 $ 20.55 $ 21.00
Quarter-end close ........ ... ... ... ... . ... $ 2849 § 27.00 $ 2519 $ 2770
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Quarter cnded
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
(In thousands except per share data)

2005
Netsales .. ..o e $50.564  $53,503 350,927 $48.643
Gross Margin . .. ... .ot ittt 518,521  $19,309 $18,287 $17,302
Earnings from continuing operations. ... ............. $ 3725 § 4387 3 4,360 $ 3,692
Loss from discontinued operations . ................. $ (169) 3 (228) $ (549) $(1,965)
Netearnings. . ... i $ 3556 § 4,159 $ 3811 $ 1,727
Earnings (loss) per share:
Basic:
Continuing Operations . . . ..................... $ 028 3% 033 $ 032 $ 027
Discontinued operations . ..................... $ (001 3 002 $ (0.0 5 0.14)
Total basic .. ...t $ 027 % 031 $ 0.28 $ 0.13
Diluted:
Continuing operations . . . ..................... F 027 3 032 3 031 $ 026
Discontinued operations . ..................... $ (00 % (0.02) $ (0.04) $ (0.14)
Total diluted . ... .. ... ... . ... . .. $ 026 3% 030 $ 027 $ 012
Dividends declared . . ... ...... ... . ... .. ... ...... $ 0070 % 0.070 $ 0.075 $ 0.075
Stock price:
High. .. ... $ 1613 % 2098 $ 2563 $ 2246
oW . $ 1323 § 13.06 $ 19.00 3 16.16
Quarter-endclose . .. ........ ... ... ... ... .. $ 1325 § 20.65 $ 19.67 3 19.62

An adjustment relating to revenue recognition for service agreements was recorded in the fourth quarter of
2006. This adjustment resulted in lower fourth quarter diluted net earnings per share from continuing operations of
approximately $0.03 and was deemed to be immaterial with respect to the impact on prior quarters,

Certain adjustments relating to the Company’s French subsidiary, primarily related to inventory valuation and
asset valuation reserves, were recorded in the fourth quarter of 2005. These adjustmentis resulted in lower fourth
quarter diluted net earnings per share of approximately $0.10 and were deemed to be immaterial with respect to the
impact on prior quarters.

The Company’s Common Stock is listed on the American Stock Exchange under the symbol BMI. Earnings
per share is computed independently for each quarter. As such, the annual per share amount may not equal the sum
of the quarterly amounts due to rounding. The Company currently anticipates continuing to pay cash dividends.
Shareholders of record as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 totaled 632 and 590, respectively, for Common Stock.
Voting trusts and street name shareholders are counted as single shareholders for this purpose.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

In accordunce with Rule 13a-15(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act™), the
Company's management evaluated, with the participation of the Company’s Chairman, President and Chief
Executive Officer and the Company’s Senior Vice President — Finance, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer, the
effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Rule 13a-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of the end of the year ended December 31, 2006. Based upon their
evaluation of these disclosure controls and procedures, the Company’s Chairman, President and Chief Executive
Officer and the Company’s Senior Vice President — Finance, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer concluded that
the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the year ended December 31, 2006
lo ensure that material information relating to the Company, including its consolidated subsidiaries, was made
known to them by others within those entities. particularly during the period in which this Annual Report on
Form 10-K was being prepared.

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reporting

There was no change in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
quarter ended December 31, 2006 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
Company's internal control over financial reporting.
Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The report of management required under this Item 9A. is contained in Item 8 of this 2006 Annual Report on
Form 10-K under the heading "Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting.”
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The attestation report required under this Item 9A. is contained in Item § of this 2006 Annual Report of
Form 10-K under the heading “Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting.”

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None,

PART Il

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information required by this Item with respect to directors is included under the headings “Nomination and
Election of Directors™ and “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance”™ in the Company’s
definitive Proxy Statement relating to the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on April 27, 2007, and
is incorporated herein by reference.

Information concerning the executive officers of the Company is included in Part I of this Form 10-K.

The Company has adopted the Badger Meter. Inc. Code of Conduct for Financial Executives that applies to the
Company’s Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer, the Company's Senior Vice President — Finance,
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer and other persons performing similar functions. A copy of the Badger Meter,
tne. Code of Conduct for Financial Executives is posted on the Company’s website at www.badgermeter.com.
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The Badger Meter, Inc. Code of Conduct for Financial Executives is also available in print to any shareholder who
requests it in writing from the Secretary of the Company. The Company satisfies the disclosure requirements under
Item 5.05 of Form 8-K regarding amendments to, or waivers from, the Badger Meter, Inc. Code of Conduct for
Financial Executives by posting such information on the Company’s website at www.badgermeter.com.

The Company is not including the information contained on its website as part of, or incorporating it by
reference into, this annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information required by this ltem is included under the headings “Executive Compensation™ and “Corporate
Governance Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation™ in the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement relating
to the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on April 27. 2007, and is incorporated herein by reference;
provided, however, that the information under the subsection “Executive Compensation -— Corporate Governance
Commitee Report™ is not deemed to be “'soliciting material” or to be “filed” with the Securities and Exchange
Commission or subject to Regulation 14A or 14C under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 or to be the liabilities
of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and will not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into
any filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, except to the extent we
specifically incorporate it by reference into such a filing.

ITEM 12, SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

Information required by this Item is included under the headings “Stock Ownership of Beneficial Owners
Holding More than Five Percent,” “Stock Ownership of Management” and “2007 Director Stock Grant Plan
Proposal — Equity Compensation Plan Information™ in the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement relating to the
Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on Aprit 27, 2007, and is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATTONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

Information required by this Item is included under the headings “Related Person Transactions™ and
“Nomination and Election of Directors — Independence Committees, Meetings and Attendance” in the Company’s
definitive Proxy Statement relating to the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on April 27, 2007, and is
incorporated herein by reference.

iTEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Information required by this ltem is included under the heading “Principal Accounting Firm Fees” in the
Company’s definitive Proxy Statement relating to the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on April 27, 2007,
and is incorporated herein by reference.

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
Documents filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

1. Financial Statements. See the financial statements included in Part I, ftem 8 “Financial State-
ments and Supplementary Data” in this 2006 Annual Report on Form 10-K, under the headings
“Consolidated Balance Sheets,” “Consolidated Statements of Operations,” “Consolidated State-

ments of Cash Flows’ and “Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity.”

M L

2. Financial Statement Schedules. Financial statement schedules are omitted because the informa-
tion required in these schedules is included in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

3. Exhibits. See the Exhibit Index included in this Form 10-K that is incorporated herein by
reference.
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SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

BADGER METER, INC.

Dated: March 6, 2007

By /s/ _RicHarp A. MEEUSEN

Richard A. Meeusen
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

/s! Ricuarp E. Jonnson

Richard E. Johnson
Senior Vice President — Finance, Chief Financial
Officer and Treasurer

/s/  BeverLy L.P. SMiLEY

Beverly L.P. Smiley
Vice President — Controller
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SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

/s/  RICHARD A. MEEUSEN

/s/  ULICE Payng, Ir.

Richard A. Meeusen

Chairman, President and Chief Executive

Officer, and Director
March 6, 2007

/s/ RoNaLp H. Dix

Ulice Payne, Jr.
Director
March 6, 2007

/s/  ANDReEw J. PoLicano

Ronald H. Dix
Director
March 6, 2007

/s/  Tnomas J. FISCHER

Andrew J, Policano
Director
March 6, 2007

/s/  STEVEN J. SMITH

Thomas J. Fischer
Director
March 6, 2007

/s/  KENNETH P. MANNING

Steven J. Smith
Director
March 6, 2007

fs!  JouNn J. STOLLENWERK

Kenneth P. Manning
Director
March 6, 2007
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Director
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corporate information

Badger Meter, Inc., Headquarters
4545 W, Brown Deer Road

PO. Box 245036

Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53224-9536
(414) 355-0400
www.badgermeter.com

Domestic Facilities
Milwaukee, Wisconsin
Tulsa, Oklahoma

Foreign Facilities
Stuttgart, Germany
Nogales, Mexico
Brno, Czech Republic

Form 10-K Report/Shareholder Information

A copy of the company’s fiscal 2006 Form 10-K annual repost
{without exhibits} as filed with the Securisies and Exchange
Commission is included in this report. Shareholder infarmation,
including news releases and Form 10-K, is available on the
company’s website: www.badgermeter.com. Shareholders
wha hold their stock in nominee or "sireet” name can receive
shareholder information directly from the campany by being
placed on our mailing list. Please direct inquiries to: Shareholder
Relations, Badger Meter, Inc, PO. Box 245036, Milwaukee, W
53224-9536 or email: jzimmer@badgermetercom.

Automatic Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan
Badger Meter's Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan

is a convenient way to acguire shares of company stock. To receive
a prospectus describing the plan and an enrollment card, please
contact our plan administrator, American Stock Transfer, at
(800) 937-5449, 0 visit their websile at: www.investpower.com.

If your stock certificate is lost, stolen or desirayed, or if you change
your address or lose a dividend check, please call American Stock
Transfer, (300) 937-5445.

Dean, Paui Merage School of Business,

executive officers

Richard A. Meeusen
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer

Ronald H. Dix
Senior Vice President -
Administration

Richard E. Johnson
Senior Vice President — Finonce,

Horst E. Gras
Vice President - International
Operations

Beverly L. Smiley
Vice President - Controlter

Dennis J. Webb
Vice President - Sales, Marketing
and Engineering

Chief Financial Officer and Treasirer .
Daniel D. Zandron

Vice President - Business
Development

william R. Bergum
Vice President — General Counsel
and Secretary

Bryan L. Cieslak
Vice President — Operations

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Ernst & Young LLP, Mitwaukee, Wisconsin

Transfer Agent
American Stock Transfer, New York, New York
(800Q) 937-5449

www.amstock.com
Listing of Common Stock 2y BMI
American Stock Exchange, Symbol—8MI N AMEX

Annual Meeting

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the 2007 annual meeting
at 8:30 a.m. on Friday, April 27, 2007, ai Badger Meter, Inc.,
4545 W. Brown Deer Road, Milwaukee, Wisconsin.

Forward Looking Statements

Certain statements contained in this document, as well as other
information provided from time to time by the company of its
employees, may contain forward looking staterments that involve
risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ
materially from those in the forward looking statements. Please
see page one af the enclosed Form 10-K for a list of words or
expressions that identify such statermnents.

Trademarks

ADE* Badger®, GALAXY®, Magnetoflow®, ORIGN®, Recordall® and RTR® are registered
rrademarks of Badger Meter, Ing, lron® is a registered tradematk of lion, Inc.
©2007 Badger Meter, Inc. All rights reserved.
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